Tillamook County Transportation District
Board of Directors
Regular Monthly Meeting

A Service of Tillamook County Transportation District

Dial-A-Ride @ RIDES

Thursday, February 18, 2021 at 6:00PM

Transportation Building
3600 Third Street, Tillamook, Oregon



BOARD OF DIRECTORS - REGULAR MONTHLY MEETING
Tillamook County Transportation District
AGENDA
Thursday, February 18, 2021 @ 6:00pm

Due to the COVID-19 Pandemic, this meeting will be held virtually.
To attend by phone, please dial: +1 (571) 317-3212
Enter Access Code: 524-842-853
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/524842853

REGULAR MEETING

Call to Order

Pledge of Allegiance

Roll Call

Announcements & Changes to Agenda

Public & Guest Comment

Public Hearing — First reading of a revision to Ordinance #3: Conduct on District Property (Pg. 1)

N

GENERAL MANAGERS REPORT

7. Financial Report (Pgs. 2-20)
8. Service Performance Report (Pgs. 21-25)
9. Northwest Oregon Transit Alliance (Pgs. 26-36)
10. Planning & Development
11. Grant Funding
12. Facility/Property Management
13. NW Rides Brokerage
14. Miscellaneous

CONSENT
15, Motion to Approve the Minutes of January 21, 2021 Regular Board Meeting (Pgs. 37-44)
16. Motion to Accept the TCTD January 2021 Financial and Service Reports

ACTION ITEMS

1t Resolution # 21-02 In the Matter of Accepting the TAC FY2021-23 STF Funding Plan
Recommendation (Pgs. 45-47)

18. Resolution # 21-03 In the Matter of Accepting the TAC FY2021-23 Section 5310 Funding Plan
Recommendation (Pgs. 48-50)

19. Resolution # 21-04 In the Matter of Authorizing the GM to Execute a Contract with Schetky NW Bus
Sales to Purchase 2 Category B Intercity Buses (Pgs. 51-58)

20. Resolution # 21-05 In the Matter of Authorizing the GM to Execute a Contract with NW Bus Sales to
Purchase 1 Category D Dial-a-Ride Bus (Pgs. 59-64)

21. Resolution # 21-06 In the Matter of Authorizing the GM to Execute a Contract with Schetky NW Bus
Sales to Purchase 4 Category E Dial-a-Ride Vans (Pgs. 65-69)

22. Resolution # 21-07 In the Matter of Authorizing the GM to Execute an Amendment to the Ecolane
USA License Agreement to Purchase Interactive Voice Response Module (Pgs. 70-74)

23. Resolution # 21-08 In the Matter of Authorizing the GM to Execute a Service Agreement with Carson
Oil Company for the Purchase of Fuels and Lubricants (Pgs. 75-77)

24, Resolution # 21-09 In the Matter of Appropriating Monies Between NW Rides FY2020-2021 Budget
Line Items to Facility CPCCO Gainshare Payments (Pgs. 78-79)

DISCUSSION ITEMS

25, Staff Comments/Concerns

26. Board of Directors Comments/Concerns
27.  Adjournment

Next regularly scheduled meeting to be held Thursday, March 18, 2021



Ordinance #3: 15t Public Hearing

Section 1.25 (4) Refusal of service. Refusal of service may occur only in situations
where a rider engages in violent, seriously disruptive, or illegal conduct; or represents a
direct threat to the health or safety of others. The District shall not refuse to provide
service to an individual with disabilities solely because the individual's disability results
in involuntary behavior that may offend, annoy, or inconvenience others.



Tillamook County Transportation District
Normal Trial Balance
From 1/31/2021 Through 1/31/2021

Account Code Account Title Debit Balance Credit Balance
1001 General Checking Account 586,333.67 ¢
1006 Payroll Checking 46,123.51
1009 NW RIDES ACCOUNT 253,938.66 -
1011 Prop. Mgmt. Checking 54,496.13 .
1020 LGIP - General Account 1,110,969.08 ,
1030 LGIP - Capital Reserve 942,114.07 -
1040 Petty Cash 200.00
Report Total 2,994,175.12 0.00
Report Difference 2,994,175.12 p
——
g
J’i!
y

Date: 2/5/21 03:41:18 PM

MONTHLY BOARD REPORT - CASH

.L,va oC’\‘

Page: 1



I :08eg 9ouBLIEA 29 198png LA/M Hodoy qOg Apuo Wd 61:L0:€0 TZ/T1/T 91

%¥9'1¢ (ogcogzn) 00°000°81 0L'969°S LY THS €6°7€0°1 0l6¥ owoouy dxg [euoneiad() osea|
%698 (00°005°6) 00°000°€C 00°00S°¢1 00°005°1 00°000°C 006¥ SUI0U] 35BI]
%00°0 (00°000°1) 00°000°1 00°0 £€€8 00°0 0TSt awodU] FUISILAAPY
%I16°LT (68'8Z¥°€7) 00°00$°C€E 11°1L0% €€'80LT 78871 015t aWwodu[ 152121U]
%000 (00°000°01) 00°000°01 000 £€°€€8 00°0 0lvy aWooU| - SASSY JO 3[eS
%10 Y91 68°00T°81 00°000°S 68°007°€T LY9TY 000 00t aWODU] STIOSUR[[ISTN
%0070 (00°005°T) 00°00$°C 00°0 £€'80T 00°0 00¢t suonerad() sng [eroads
2607 6C (00°2£0°5€£0) 00°000°T€€ 00°896°96 00°000°€8 000 STy 0LES - sueIn
%E£9°'8¢ (00°906°Z11) 00°000°81 00 60°1L 00°000°9% 000 ovey @ 11¢€6 - swein
%00°SL (00°s26'91) 00°00L°LY 00°SLLOS 00°0 0052691 0€TH ALS - swein
%00°SL (00700s°01) 00°000°CH 00°005°1¢€ 00°0 00°005°01 szey YOIBIN IU0D) JouMEd VIOMN
%00°0 8€°887°L9 000 8€'887°L9 000 000 12z AIAQD - swue1D
%SI'1T1 00°185°¢8 00°000°$6€ 00°18S°8LY 00°0SL°86 000 0T 1L€S VL - siuein
%000 (00°000°160°1) 00°000°160°1 00°0 00°0SL°CLT 00°0 01T syueln) ende)
%0101 (00'zZ8€°¢19) 00°000°TS€ 00°819°9¢ 000 000 LELY A1eUOIR10SI(] ALLS
%81°8T (00TTE810) 00°000°v0¢ 00'8L9°c8 000 00°0 9¢l ¥ Arunuwtossauy 411§
%Z0°9S (00'791°€12) 00 1ZL 8P 00°655°1LT 00°0 00°€€L°68 Selp elnuLo J1LS
%ES €L (0L €6v°TD) 00°000°58 0£'905°29 £€°€80°L €9°9.8°C¢ 0€T¥ XB, [[01AR ] 91€1S JISURL] SSBIN]
%80T (18°CTEL°LIT) 00°000°6LT 61°L9T°LS L9°916TT 000 0TIt INUIAYY Joquil] 27B1S
%29'9S (18 v¥8°01) 00°000°6T 61°SSTY1 £€°€80°C 81°986°C 011t xe], Apadoid srea g 1seg
%16°001 €L°L89°8 00°000°0$6 €L'L89°856 L9991°6L 61°599°6T 001+ xe], Aadoig
%66 8% (8T10€°9t+) 00°000°5L8 TL'869°8TY L9916TL 19656 Y 020t 2NUIADY 10BHU0))
%60°LE (€¢7cTL881) 00°000°00¢ LYVLTIIT 00°000°5¢ LL'6EETI 000¥ sareq
%00°0 (00°c£8916°1) 00°SE8°916°1 000 00°0 000 00S€ [erde)) Sunpom
moo.SOmuM
%8¢ 0UBLIB A 193png [e10] [enoy 193png polsg [enOY poLiag
gow_u:m [e1o], Eu% EQ.E:U EM.ESO ED.EZQ

[20T/1€/1 Y3noIyy, 1g0g/1/1 woiq
JUSWdIR)IS [BIOURUL ]

PLHSIQ uoneiodsuea I £3uno)) yooure[L,



7 :98eg

2oURLIBA 29 198png (LA/M Hoday qOg A[ypuo

2%69°6€ 61°CIYT 00°000t 1872851 £EEee TS
%618t I ILLL 00°000°G1 ¥$'8TT'L 00°0ST°1 (20°0L9)
%5808 €9°EVLS 00°000°0€ LE9STHT 00°00$°C 00°0
2000 00°005°L 00°005°L 000 00529 000
%S8 ¥ 0SLESYI 00°000°5¢T 0S°29r°01 £€°€80°C 00°0
%L1 b6 v 029 00°0ST°011 09°6Z8°€01 0S'L81°6 61°7SE°8
%8LbS 1$°90L°690°1 00'TS695£°T 67 SYTL6T'1 LYTIF 961 W6SSEIL
%Iy ¥Tl (€9°€18°L) 00°000°C€ £9°€18°6€ L9999°C 00°0
%€9°1S 81°650°7¢ 00°009°St ISPrsieT 00°008°€ 0P €61°¢
%1£°09 £S°LL6LT 00°00S°0L LY'TTS TY 00°SL8°S 09°€0€°S
%S 16V 16'99€°CZT 00°TSELEY 60586 11T 00°9¥ b 9¢€ T9LIIE
%Z1°6S LY T8Y°0S 00°005°€21 £SLI0EL LY 16T°01 0v°00Z°8
%88°19 66'189°9C 00°000°0L 1081EEY £€7€E8S 08'¥Th's
%87 €S LESLIETS 00°000°0T1°1 £9°128°96S €€ ¢EE'c6 60°SEY°6T
2%S£°69 90'C61°8T 0000026 ¥6°L08€9 L9999 TLIYLL
%¥8TS £€°685°TLI 00°000°99¢ LOFIVE6] 00°00S°0€ 66°€£80°€T
%EIPE (ZTP90°L68°9) 00°LT6°156°8 88798 %50°C €€'856°C1L ST IvE9ET
2%95°¢ (00°L0€°116) 00°000°S¥6 00°€69°¢E 000 000
%000 (00'98L°9%) 00°98L°9F 00°0 000 00°0
%000 (00°5£8°1€) 00°S£8°1€ 000 000 0070
%€9°€6 (00°000°01) 00°0S0°LS 1 00°0S0°L¥1 000 00°0
%8S uUBLIR A 193png [e10], jenpy 108png porag [emOY POLID |
wmwﬁu:m_ [e10], Jed Em.::mu Eob:U EQESU

1T02/1€/1 Y8noay L, [Z0Z/1/1 Woi]

JUSWISIR)S [BIOUBUL]

1LySIq uoneodsuea ], Sjuno)) yooweyi],

ovts
0zIs
€01¢
a0ls
101¢
001¢

€cos
£60¢
ceos
1S0¢
0c0¢
0v0s
0€0¢
0208
010¢

8l6v
916y
oy
[16v

INd 61:L0°€0 1T/T1/T 1B

AW wawidinbg 20130
suondiosqng 7 san(]
Sutuue|

0UBUIUIBIA 21ISQI M
woddng sanensiurpy
SIDIAIIG [BUOISSYOIJ

SI0IAIOS PUE S[BLIOIBIA]
SAJIAIDG |OUUOSIS] [B10],

‘suf uonesuaduwo)) SIONI0 M
BQOA [[015B]

JUSWY [[01AB]
JIBOYYBIH [[0IARY]
asuadxq [j01keg
9OUBUDIUIBIA] :[JOIAB]
SIOALI(] :[[01A]

yoredsi(q :[[olke
UOHBNSIUIWPY ([[0IAE

SAJIAIOG [QUUOSID ]

S90IN0SAY [B10],

pun,j LS WOl Jojsuei],
pun, IS Wolj 19jsuel],

'S9Y "YoIngd "Ys A WOJJ IQJSuelL |
puny [BI2USL) WOL,] I9JSURL]



€ :98ed 0UBLIBA 9 193png LA/M Hoday qOd AYIuon N 61°L0°€0 17/Z1/T 2%-d

%96'LS £7°66£°68S 00'85S°26€°1 LLTIT'LOS 91'€16°02T LTS THT SOIAIDS PUE S[ELIDJEIN [BI0]
%I1°€S TESLY'T 00000 89'1TIT €€ eee T8°SL 1439 Jurey Aujioe suoneiadQ
29 101 (8¢°16€) 00°000°5T 8€°16£°5T £€7€80°C LO0TE'L ores Ireday] 29 ey Auadolg
%00°0 00°00¢ 00008 000 LYY 00°0 0£€s 30,1 19582 X214
%59°8 L86LSTI 00°00S¥¢ £1°026°11 LY 140°C [AA 13 00¢€S esuadxg SuneiadQ Auedol
2%00°0 (LE¥80°68) 0070 LEY80°68 000 L8398 P8 1628 asuadxg AIAOD
%000 00°000°05¢ 00°000°05¢ 00°0 00°000°52Z1 00°0 062$ Ju0) SuneisdQ [e1ouan
%0 LS TSE0LL 0000081 817°967°01 00°00S°1 | $87S UIBIA] 10U JONSIA 79 USURL],
%00°0 (00°006°t) 000 00006t 00°00L 00°00L 08Z¢ 9SB2T I21U0Y) JONSIA 79 MSUBL],
%000 00°80L°C 00'80L°C 000 L9°6TT 000 0LZS pun,j uopeaIdYy Ioqe AW
%ES°LS 8¢°6+8 00°000°C 79°0S1°1 L9991 80°¥61 092s a3esog
%01 +¥ [9°LYL'6E1 0000005 6£TSTOI1 £€°€£8°0T 8T 11691 (S 449 asuadxq [an,]
%8178 1¥°120°s¢ 00°000°00T 65°8L691 £9°999°91 11°96L°9 (1249 asuadxy spo1ga A
%6£°0T TTELY'ST 00°000°C¢ 8L°97S'9 89°999°C L81€T 0ces Supurel] 29 [9aB1],
%£9°96 19°86+°3 00°009°61 6€101°11 €€€E9°] SLYEE ] 012s asuadxy auoydaja],
%00°0 (£8°L84°0) 000 €8°L8Y°CT 000 000 961§ 199(01 8300V IsURIL
%LTLE 00°SH0°LY 00°000°SL 00°SS6°LT 000529 000 1615 uBISa(1-Y 9NSGIM
2%20'67 98°¢£0°6€ 00°000°6S FI¥96°61 Ve E8S Y $9°669°C 0616 Sunasrepy
%08°8¢ 00°0£S°1 00°00$°C 00°0L6 £€'80T 007001 ¢8Is UoHeNSIUIUpPY [040d[Y 2% Snig
%L8°T9 6T90°C1 00°00S 0% [L°€9%°6T 66'¥LEC (LL682°1) 081¢ asuadxg [euonersdQ
%96°LT TLY9E°6 00°000°¢1 87°¢£9°¢ £€°€80°1 00°05€ SLIS osuadxqg pleog
2%91°¥L 98°GL8E 00°000°S1 4R 7ANE! 00°05¢°1 (LeL8L) 0LIS asuadxs 20430
%I1SL01 (00°v15°L) 007000001 00F1S°L01 €EeLe’ 00 V1S LOT 091¢ PoueINSU]
%ST 0¥ 6S°616°81 00°000°1¢€ 17°08%°C1 €686 19°800°S 0SI1S SISUAIIT 7 S99,
%79 St LEE€T0TT 00°00$ 0% £9°9.1°81 00°SLE'S (9LsL1°1) ShIs Y Jemdwo)
%8¢ QQUBLIB A 193png [e10], [enoy 123png polag [en1oy pouad
Howtzm [e10], .:m@.% chtzU wcot:U W_:ut:mu

120Z/1€/1 Ysnoayy, 1z0z/1/1 wol]
1ULWLNBIS [BIOUBUL ]

PLOSI( uoneiodsuel ], £)uno)) Joowei ],



p e8ed ouelIRA % 198png LA/M Hoday qOY Apuop
%0070 00°000°50S 00°000°50S 000 00°000°TST 000
%00°0 00°000°0+8 00°000°0+8 00°0 00°000°0C¥ 000
%98°¢tl1 (Sr6s1¥) 00°000°0€ SI'6sive 00°00S°T 01°€80°91
%09°1L CTYSE6T 00°0S€°€01 8L'S66°EL 0STIL'S 8¢C09
%58ty 8L v¥8°91 00°000°0€ TTSSIeT 0070 000
%00°0 00°008°F 00008y 00°0 00°0 00°0
%¥T'9¢ ¥6'187°¢ 00°005°L 90'81T¥ 00°$29 86209
%00°ST 0S°LES'Y 00°050°9 0S'TIST L1'¥0S 000
%07 001 (00°01L1) 00°000°¢¢ 00°011°SS €€ €8Sy 000
%CT9 L 00°0I¥°STLT 00°€51°906°C 00°EPL 081 000 000
%00°0 00°'L¥9°0T0°1 00'L¥9°020°1 000 000 000
%000 00°S€8°10L 00°S€8°10L 00°0 00°0 00°0
%8L°S1 00°000°¥9 00°000°9L 00'000°CI 000 00°0
%00°0 00°000°01 00°000°01 000 00°0 00°0
%19°¢ 00°£60°L68 00'98.°0€6 00°€69°€€ 000 000
2007001 00°0 00°050°S€1 00°050°S¢l 000 00°0
%000 00°¢E8°1€ 00'5€8°1¢€ 00°0 00°0 000
%l10°SL - 00°LLY'9 00¥16°ST 00°LEV 61 €8°T66°C L 00'6LY°9
%00°SL 000ST°l 00°000°S 00°0SL°¢ 00°0SZ°1 00°0ST°1
%00°SL 00°LTT'S 00'¥16°0C 00°L89°C1 €8ThL’l 00°6TT°S

%86 JoUBLIB A 193png [e10], [enoYy 193png porung [endy pouad
193png [e10], Jea X juamny) juauIny) JuaLny

1270T/1¢/1 ysnoxy], [707/1/1 woig

WUSWNRS [BIOUBUL]

LDsI(q uoneliodsuea ], £uno)) yoowe L

0109
0009
0€¢€S

8¢EE¢
LEES
(Y43
0ces
oreg

0816
CLI6
0916
0Sl6
0cl6
0Il6
0016

10¢s
00¢s

INd 61:L0°€0 1T/T1/T -3ed
uoIppypuauwaoe[day uep
uonippy Ausuwiaoe|day] sng

uoneAouay 2% 1eday urpring
saseyauny [eude)
QIIAIRS 1G3(J 810,
A0TAIRS 193 dILO
NVOTDAL d110
asuadxs uroT And
1S2I31U] 19SBAT X[, ]
[ediour1 :9se97 X9[,
IAIG 12T
AepinQ eyde))
SI9JSUBIL] [BI0]

Jed puny Sutpuq pajendorddeun
amypuadxz] a1mn,{ 10J 9AIISY
PU] VIOMN O} JoJsued],
JAIISIY J[IIYI A 0] J3JSUBI ]
puny [RIdUd0) 0] I9Jsuel],
WS Auadol g 01 Jojsued ],
1€6S dIDT 01 19)sued],

sIajsuel]

siuswAed [eroadg el

stuatdioay] 01 sjuswAed J11S
S1ua1d1ooy 01 sjuaWkeJ J1S

s1awAed [e1oadg



¢ :98eq

S0UBLIBA %9 133pNg (LLA/M Hoday qOg Alpuop

%I18'8C Y9'9E¥TLED 00°LT6°156°8 9€°06¥°6L5°T 91'1€5°991°1 LE'8LO'EIE
%LETI 06°Ly1 686°1 00°0SE°0LTT 01°206°08Z 0S°CIT9pL 89'VLS
%SS°6 89°€60°096°1 00°000°L91°C 7€906°90T 00°00S 0¥ L (06°L7)
%CI'LT £8°1€6°81Y 00000919 L1°890°L91 eeeee1s (0or11'9n)
Y%yt 00°1Z€'651 00°000°S91 00°'6L9°C 00°0SL €l 000

%0070 00°000°9 000009 000 00°008 000

2%00°0 00°000°S 00°000°S 000 L991¥ 000

%86 J0UBLIBA 193png [e10] [enoy 108png pousd [EMIOY poLIog

193png 10T,

120T/1€/1 USnoIyL, [Z0z/1/] woig

IB9 & JUDLIND)

3Ny

JUSWIDIELS [BIOUBUL,]
PLSIq uoneliodsuea I, A)uno)) yoouwre|[iy,

LNy

0£09
0¥09
1209
0209

INd 61:L0°€0 1T/T1/C @10

sasuadxd (10,
AennQ [eude) fe1o0],
saseyaing [ende) [ejo],
s199load ende) oy10
SI9)jays/a3euslg doig sng
uro uonen3ueLL] 190 [90.]
ape1ddp seindwo))



| :28eq JUBLIBA 29 193png @LA/M Hoday qOT Alyuop
%000 00°000°C 00°000°C 00°0 L9991 00°0
%91°L9 €0°CT6'Y 00°000°C1 L6'LO01 00°0ST°l 66'1C
%9 VL 07'908°¢ 00°000°S1 08°€61°11 00'0ST°1 08°181°C
%69°6¢ 61TIVT 00°000t 18°L8S°1 £eeEee s
%0070 00°00S°1 00°005°1 000 00°¢T1 00°0
%¢T €81 (LS 191°%) 00°000°¢ LS 1916 L991Y 00°0v¢
%C9°CS 9€°09%°97C 00°000°8LY ¥9°6£5°1ST €€€£8°6¢ 08'v¥S0°CE
%000 mmv.w_mv 000 cr8lE 000 000
%T8'8Y 8€'€59°9 00°000°€I 79°9%€9 £€°€80°1 Y9°SL8
%lET9 LY'ES9°S 00°000°S 1 €S°OVE'6 00°0ST’1 0L SITl
%SY'CS 6L10€°TS 00°000°011 12°869°LS L9991°6 99°810°8
%EP0S 8¥'06£°C1 00°000°ST ¢S'609°C1 £€°€80°C 8TT9V°I
%9T'L1 00°078%C 00°000°0¢€ 00°081°S 00°00S°T 00°00v
%S1°9¢ 99°656 VI 00°000°68¢ PEOr0091 00°0SL°€ET c1esioc
%087y  (66'188°100°C) 00°008°L¥T°S 10°816°CHTT .S.o_mﬁmv 67 LLITEE -
%000 00°001 000 -oo.og 00°0 00°0
%00°0 LEVEY VL 0070 LEYEY I 0070 00°0
%00°0 0€ToPElT 00°0 0€'T9¥ElT 000 000
%S 8¢ (99'8L8°67Z°€) 00°008°L¥T°S PEIT6°LIOT L991ELEY 6V LLYIEE

%8¢ douBLIB A 198png [g10], [enjoy 193png poung [EN1OY POLID]

198png [e10

Jea K 1ua.Ln)) sy

120Z/1€/1 YSnoI ], 1707/1/1 wolq

LINNODIV SHANY MN - 60
JuLUISIR)S [BIOURUL]

UL

Lsi(q uoneliodsuea I, Ayuno)) yoowe|i],

091¢
(IS
9419
ovie
0cI¢
00I1¢

¢s0¢
£50¢
s0s
160¢
0c0¢
84009
010¢

01y
1cey
L0V
90V

Nd T1:60:€0 1T/21/T *3req
JouBINSU]
SASUIOIT 79 S99,
N¥Y 1omndwo)
U wawdinby 201130
suondirosqng 29 san
SIDIAIIG [RUOISSATOI]
SIOIAIDS PUR S[ELISIBIA
SIOIAIIG [QUUOSIJ [R10 L,
‘suf uonesuaduroy) 110 m
BQIA [[01AR]
JUSIDINDY []0IARY
aIeoyleaY [[0IAed
asuadxd [[oiked
10211puf :[[oIAR{
UOHRNSIUIWPY ([[0IAR]
SOOIAIDG [QUUOSIS]
sasuadxyg

S9OINOSOY [RI0 ],
aWodU[ J$3I9U]
AIAOD - sjueln)
AIISY UMN

ANUIARY YN
$921N0S9Y



7 98egd UBLIRA 29 198png LA/M Hoday Oy Ajpuop
%6 LE 1€°LT9°LSTE 00°008°LYT’S 69°TLI066°T .wo.fmﬁmv AN A4
%S9¢ €6'991°1€0°C 00°008°69LY SO'EE9BEL'L €€ €8V L6E TEVOTLIT
%LL 0T 65°TT6L 00°000°01 Iv'LLOT £EEes 8L°9%C
%EE'8¢ 00°000°C 00°008°¥ 00°008°C 00°00% 00°00%
%88'¢¢ eIy v9T 00°000°00% L8'8SSSE] £eeee’ee 00°000°S
%EEVT 00°080°80C 00°000°6LT 00°076°99 L9916°CT 00°000°¢1
%86°9¢ 8L°119°0T8°T 00°000°000°F TT88E6LY ] €EEEEELE 08'SLLT61
%969¢ CE0EL 00°000°1 $9'69C £ee8 $6'6
%59°¢ [€LI8Y 00°000°S 69281 L991Y 000
%EY'18 TTEILE 00°000°0T 8L°987°91 L9°999°( LEE60°1
%llvE LT'886 00°005°1 EL'IIS 00°¢¢CI 000
%61°9T SH08€°L 00°000°01 SS619C £EEe8 [¥°90¢

%8¢ duUBLIR A 123png je10], [enoy 193png poliag [endy pold
128png [e10], 189 & juauny) usrmny flickiiflg)

1202/1€/1 48noay [, [Z0Z/1/1 woig
LNNODIV SAATrd MN - 60

1USUIDIB)S [BIOUEBUL]

PLYsI uoneodsuea ] AHuno)) Yoowe|iL,

00€s
182¢
L9TS
99¢¢
192749
09t¢
0zes
0lce
08I1¢
0LIS

Wd T1:60°€0 17/T1/T =1ed

sasuadxq [e10],
SODIAIOS PUR S[RLIDIBIA] [BIO ]

asuadxy Suneredy Auadoig
U 9OJO
ISINQUIIDY 3FBI[IIA] 1991UN[O A
TUWSINGUITDY 9FBa[I]A JOqUIS[A]
uonerodsuel ] paseyolng
a3eisog
Suruter] 7 [eAei],
asuadxy suoydofa |
asuadxy [euoneled
asuadxy 21O



Tillamook County Transportation District

Check/Voucher Register
1001 - General Checking Account
From 1/1/2021 Through 1/31/2021

Document Document Transaction

Number Date Amount Payee Transaction Description

16016 1/7/2021 15.60 Batteries Northwest BATTERIES

16017 1/7/2021 900.00 Care Inc. STF AND STIF QTR PAYMENTS

16017 1/7/2021 1,250.00 Care Inc. STF AND STIF QTR PAYMENTS

16018 1/7/2021 700.00 City Of Tillamook TVC LEASE

16019 1/7/2021 231.00 Coast Printing & Stationery ROUTE BROCHURES

16020 1/7/2021 850.00 WAVE DECEMBER TELEPHONE

16021 1/7/2021 107.07 COMCAST SALEM INTERNET

16022 1/7/2021 65.10 COUNTRY MEDIA ADVERTISING

16023 1/7/2021 100.00 CRYSTAL AND SIERRA SPRINGS WATER

16024 1/7/2021 40.00 CENTURYLINK HARD LINE FAX/PHONE

16025 1/7/2021 155.00 GenXsys Solutions, LLC COMPUTER SUPPORT

16026 1/7/2021 1,035.00 INNOVA LEGAL ADVISORS TRANSIT VISITOR CENTER LEGAL

16027 1/7/2021 7,005.00 JORDAN SCHRADER RAMIS, PC LEGAL

16027 1/7/2021 4,171.00 JORDAN SCHRADER RAMIS, PC LEGAL

16028 1/7/2021 2,142.21 KITTELSON & ASSOCIATES, INC. STIF PLAN

16029 1/7/2021 4,329.00 Marie Mills Center, Inc QTR STF PAYMENT

16030 1/7/2021 115.00 North Coast Lawn JANITORIAL

16031 1/7/2021 1,025.00 NATHAN LEVIN JANUARY LEASE PAYMENT

16032 1/7/2021 24.99 Office Depot Credit Pian OFFICE SUPPLIES

16032 1/7/2021 58.08 Office Depot Credit Plan OFFICE SUPPLIES

16033 1/7/2021 201.80 Pacific Office Automation TCTD COPIES

16034 1/7/2021 964.60 PETROCARD INC. FUEL

16035 1/7/2021 70.34 PORTLAND GENERAL SALEM ELECTRIC

16036 1/7/2021 14,709.79 Sheldon Qil Distributors FUEL

16037 1/7/2021 400.00 Tillamook Family Counseling ADVERTISING

16038 1/7/2021 394.80 VERIZON DECEMBER TABLET DATA

16039 1/7/2021 427.86 WEST COAST EXHAUST van 104

16039 1/7/2021 133.10 WEST COAST EXHAUST VAN 109

16039 1/7/2021 180.00 WEST COAST EXHAUST VAN 202

16039 1/7/2021 324.00 WEST COAST EXHAUST BUS 300

16039 1/7/2021 72.00 WEST COAST EXHAUST TCTD PICKUP

16039 1/7/2021 504.00 WEST COAST EXHAUST BUS 300

16039 1/7/2021 126.00 WEST COAST EXHAUST BUS 28

16039 1/7/2021 108.00 WEST COAST EXHAUST BUS 206

16039 1/7/2021 86.40 WEST COAST EXHAUST BUS 18

16039 1/7/2021 43.20 WEST COAST EXHAUST BUS 302

16039 1/7/2021 43.20 WEST COAST EXHAUST BUS 304

16039 1/7/2021 43.20 WEST COAST EXHAUST BUS 18

16040 1/7/2021 909.65 Fred Meyer Customer Charges DECEMBER CARD CHARGES

16041 1/7/2021 114.03 Petty Cash Clerk PETTY CASH

16042 1/7/2021 3,730.17 CARDMEMBER SERVICE CARD CHARGES

16043 1/14/2021 16,529.00 ADVANCED DIESEL SERVICE BUS 34 ENGINE REPAIR

16044 1/14/2021 3,260.95 AKS ENGINEERING & FORESTRY LLC TRANSIT & VISITOR CENTER

16044 1/14/2021 145.00 AKS ENGINEERING & FORESTRY LLC TRANSIT & VISITOR CENTER

16045 1/14/2021 295.60 ALSCO - Portland Linen MATT SERVICE

16046 1/14/2021 177.29 CAR CARE SPECIALISTS, INC. DEF

16047 1/14/2021 86.46 Advance Auto Parts SHOP INVENTORY

16048 1/14/2021 4,875.00 Columbia Pacific Economic NWOTA ADMINISTRATION OCTOEB
DEC 2020

16049 1/14/2021 724.00 COUNTRY MEDIA ADVERTISING

16049 1/14/2021 124.00 COUNTRY MEDIA ADVERTISING

16050 1/14/2021 1,376.10 FleetPride, Inc. DECEMBER 2020

16051 1/14/2021 1,000.00 JLD COST CONSULTING FUEL STATION/GRANT 33788

16052 1/14/2021 45.25 KEMPS NORTH COAST TOOLS TRIM PAD/SHOP INVENTORY

16052 1/14/2021 68.68 KEMPS NORTH COAST TOOLS SHOP TOOLS

16053 1/14/2021 1,178.76 LES SCHWAB WAREHOUSE CENTER TIRES [ D

16054 1/14/2021 1,869.91 LUM'S AUTO CENTER, INC. VAN 108 ENGINE REPAIR 1

Date: 2/12/21 03:03:32 PM

Page: 1



Document Document
Number Date

16055 1/14/2021
16055 1/14/2021
16056 1/14/2021
16056 1/14/2021
16056 1/14/2021
16056 1/14/2021
16056 1/14/2021
16057 1/14/2021
16058 1/14/2021
16059 1/14/2021
16060 1/27/2021
16061 1/29/2021
16062 1/29/2021
16063 1/29/2021
16064 1/29/2021
16065 1/29/2021
16066 1/29/2021
16067 1/29/2021
16068 1/29/2021
16069 1/29/2021
16069 1/29/2021
16069 1/29/2021
16069 1/29/2021
16070 1/29/2021
16071 1/29/2021
16072 1/29/2021
16073 1/29/2021
16074 1/29/2021
16075 1/29/2021
16075 1/29/2021
16075 1/29/2021
16075 1/29/2021
16076 1/29/2021
16077 1/29/2021
16078 1/29/2021
16079 1/29/2021
16080 1/29/2021
16081 1/29/2021
16082 1/29/2021
16083 1/29/2021
16084 1/29/2021
16085 1/29/2021
16085 1/29/2021
16086 1/29/2021
Report Total

Date: 2/12/21 03:03:32 PM

Tillamook County Transportation District

Check/Voucher Register
1001 - General Checking Account
From 1/1/2021 Through 1/31/2021

Transaction
Amount Payee Transaction Description
1,154.55 Marie Mills Center, Inc JANITORIAL
22.92 Marie Mills Center, Inc JANITORIAL SUPPLIES
92,91 McCOY FREIGHTLINER SHOP INVENTORY
46.53 McCQOY FREIGHTLINER BUS 300
16,386.61 McCOY FREIGHTLINER BUS 305 - INSURANCE
CLAIM/ACCIDENT
3,895.99 McCOY FREIGHTLINER BUS 30 ELECTRICAL REPAIR
2,468.78 McCOY FREIGHTLINER BUS 303 REPLACE TURNBO ACTIV
6,747.37 NORTHSIDE FORD BUS 28 ENGINE REPAIR
120.96 PACIFIC CITY SUN ADVERTISING
26.50 TILLAMOOK DIESEL REPAIR SHOP SUPPLIES
697.50 TILLAMOOK COUNTY HEALTH DEPT covid - flu shots
3,000.70 ADP, LLC PAYROLL SERVICES
24.74 BAUDVILLE EMPLOYEE OF THE YEAR
100.00 BIO-MED TESTING SERVICE, INC. EMPLOYEE DRUG SCREEN
120.00 CHRIS MOTLEY CDL PHYSICAL
700.00 City Of Tillamook TVC LEASE
100.00 CRYSTAL AND SIERRA SPRINGS WATER
95.00 DANIELL AMAYA CDL PHYSICAL
100.00 Fred Meyer Customer Charges CARD CHARGES
155.00 GenXsys Solutions, LLC TABATHA LAPTOP SETUP
500.25 GenXsys Solutions, LLC COMPUTER SUPPORT
1,498.00 GenXsys Solutions, LLC COMPUTER SUPPORT
77.50 GenXsys Solutions, LLC HAILEYS LAPTOP
218.73 Gillespie Graphics RIDE THE WAVE LOGO
270.00 INNOVA LEGAL ADVISORS LEGAL/HR
1,666.00 JORDAN SCHRADER RAMIS, PC PROPANE FUEL PROJECT
1,025.00 NATHAN LEVIN SALEM LEASE
16.00 NEW AGE CAR WASH VAN WASHES
74.53 Office Depot Credit Plan OFFICE SUPPLIES
14.99 Office Depot Credit Plan OFFICE SUPPLIES
22.14 Office Depot Credit Plan OFFICE SUPPLIES
71.93 Office Depot Credit Plan OFFICE SUPPLIES
3.00 OR DEPT OF MOTOR VEHICLES DRIVER RECORDS
122.84 PACIFIC CITY SUN ADVERTISING
274.17 Pacific Office Automation COPIES
902.23 PETROCARD INC. FUEL
225.22 Pacific Office Automation COPIER LEASE
316.00 Prevailing Communications RADIOS
50.41 Schetky Northwest Sales, Inc. DOOR HANDLE
107,514.00 SPECIAL DISTRICTS INS. SERVICE AUTO INSURANCE
750.00 Tillamook Chamber of Commerce BANQUET SPONSOR
44.62 Tillamook PUD LARGE BUS BARD
30.90 Tillamook PUD SMALL BUS BARN
49.95  VANIR BROADBAND, INC. INTERNET
231,455.66

Page: 2



Tillamook County Transportation District
Check/Voucher Register
1006 - Payroll Checking
From 1/1/2021 Through 1/31/2021

Document Document

Number Date Payee

5612 1/14/2021 HRA VEBA TRUST

5613 1/29/2021 SPECIAL DISTRICTS INS.
SERVICE

5614 1/29/2021 PACIFIC SOURCE

Date: 2/12/21 03:03:39 PM

Page: 1



Tillamook County Transportation District

Check/Voucher Register
1009 - NW RIDES ACCOUNT
From 1/1/2021 Through 1/31/2021

Document Document Transaction

Number Date Amount Payee Transaction Description

2828 1/7/2021 623.37 WAVE DECEMBER TELEPHONE

2829 1/7/2021 4,734.70 COLUMBIA COUNTY RIDER PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2830 1/7/2021 137.58 CRYSTAL AND SIERRA SPRINGS WATER

2831 1/7/2021 50.80 CENTURYLINK HARD LINE FAX/PHONE

2832 1/7/2021 2,942.73 JANNA SMITH NWR VOLUNTEERS

2833 1/7/2021 2,120.75 JOHN REKART JR NWR VOLUNTEERS

2834 1/7/2021 2,429.80 KANDIS LIDAY NWR VOLUNTEERS

2835 1/7/2021 404.43 LEANN CHUINARD NWR VOLUNTEERS

2836 1/7/2021 5,354.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2836 1/7/2021 765.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2836 1/7/2021 173.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE PHONES

2837 1/7/2021 5,897.70 METRO WEST PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2838 1/7/2021 100.00 North Coast Lawn JANITORIAL

2839 1/7/2021 59.96 Office Depot Credit Plan OFFICE SUPPLIES

2840 1/7/2021 44.38 Pacific Office Automation NWR COPIES

2841 1/7/2021 3,101.58 SEAN REKART NWR VOLUNTEERS

2842 1/7/2021 780.00 SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT NWR VOLUNTEERS

2842 1/7/2021 425.00 SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2842 1/7/2021 868.00 SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2843 1/7/2021 10,545.50 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2844 1/7/2021 10,028.25 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2845 1/7/2021 8,693.25 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2846 1/7/2021 13,618.50 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2847 1/7/2021 3,001.85 VAL HOLYOAK NWR VOLUNTEERS

2848 1/7/2021 2,695.20 WILLAMETTE VALLEY TRANSPORT PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2849 1/7/2021 1,596.75 WILLIAM NERENBERG NWR VOLUNTEERS

2850 1/7/2021 634.78 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. DECEMBER RENT AND UTILITIES
2851 1/7/2021 540.54 CARDMEMBER SERVICE CARD CHARGES

2853 1/14/2021 1,469.92 AAA RIDE ASSIST NWR

2853 1/14/2021 1,717.44 AAA RIDE ASSIST NWR

2854 1/14/2021 4,254.40 COLUMBIA COUNTY RIDER PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2855 1/14/2021 2,552.85 COLUMBIA MEDICAL PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2855 1/14/2021 2,904.07 COLUMBIA MEDICAL PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2856 1/14/2021 5,203.00 K & M MEDIVAN PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2856 1/14/2021 3,311.70 K & M MEDIVAN PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2856 1/14/2021 2,511.85 K & M MEDIVAN PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2857 1/14/2021 3,948.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2857 1/14/2021 3,408.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2857 1/14/2021 4,795.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE NWR

2857 1/14/2021 5,764.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2857 1/14/2021 5,429.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2858 1/14/2021 8,343.20 METRO WEST PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2859 1/14/2021 250.00 MTN RETREAT SECURE TRANSPORT PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2859 1/14/2021 687.50 MTN RETREAT SECURE TRANSPORT PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2860 1/14/2021 10,078.48 RYANS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2860 1/14/2021 8,914.05 RYANS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2861 1/14/2021 720.00 SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2861 1/14/2021 1,217.00 SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT NWR

2861 1/14/2021 1,000.00 SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2861 1/14/2021 987.00 SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT NWR

2861 1/14/2021 1,415.00 SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT NWR

2861 1/14/2021 873.00 SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2861 1/14/2021 764.00 SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2862 1/14/2021 10,761.59 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. DECEMBER 2020 BENEFITS
2863 1/14/2021 8,500.65 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. DECEMBER 31ST 2020

2864 1/14/2021 200.00 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. DECEMBER 2020

2865 1/14/2021 6,545.50 WAPATO SHORES NWR

Date: 2/12/21 03:03:46 PM

BOARD - MONTHLY CHECK REGISTER - 1009 NWR ACCOUNT

Page: 1

e

l

)



Tillamook County Transportation District

Check/Voucher Register
1009 - NW RIDES ACCOUNT
From 1/1/2021 Through 1/31/2021

Payee

Document Document Transaction
Number Date Amount

2865 1/14/2021 5,399.00
2865 1/14/2021 7,118.75
2865 1/14/2021 5,472.50
2865 1/14/2021 4,839.25
2866 1/14/2021 3,312.20
2867 1/27/2021 2,301.48
2867 1/27/2021 2,181.20
2867 1/27/2021 1,877.00
2868 1/27/2021 13.20
2869 1/27/2021 155.40
2869 1/27/2021 4,089.28
2869 1/27/2021 6,096.26
2869 1/27/2021 4,233.80
2870 1/27/2021 5,019.40
2871 1/27/2021 5,355.00
2871 1/27/2021 111.00
2871 1/27/2021 8,238.00
2871 1/27/2021 5,070.00
2871 1/27/2021 148.00
2872 1/27/2021 1,964.87
2872 1/27/2021 14,711.35
2872 1/27/2021 14,442.28
2872 1/27/2021 12,676.06
2873 1/27/2021 981.00
2873 1/27/2021 952.00
2874 1/27/2021 12,457.75
2875 1/27/2021 10,804.50
2876 1/27/2021 8,205.75
2877 1/27/2021 8,656.25
2877 1/27/2021 7,092.00
2879 1/29/2021 225.38
2880 1/29/2021 100.81
2881 1/29/2021 1,502.00
2882 1/29/2021 121.37
2883 1/29/2021 58.85
2884 1/29/2021 225.22
Report Total 357,101.76

Date: 2/12/21 03:03:46 PM

WAPATO SHORES

WAPATO SHORES

WAPATO SHORES

WAPATO SHORES

WILLAMETTE VALLEY TRANSPORT
AAA RIDE ASSIST

AAA RIDE ASSIST

AAA RIDE ASSIST

COLUMBIA COUNTY RIDER
COLUMBIA MEDICAL

COLUMBIA MEDICAL

COLUMBIA MEDICAL

COLUMBIA MEDICAL

K & M MEDIVAN

MEDIX AMBULANCE

MEDIX AMBULANCE

MEDIX AMBULANCE

MEDIX AMBULANCE

MEDIX AMBULANCE

RYANS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE
RYANS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE
RYANS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE
RYANS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE
SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT

SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT
TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST.
TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST.
TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST.
WAPATO SHORES

WAPATO SHORES

CRYSTAL AND SIERRA SPRINGS
Fred Meyer Customer Charges
GenXsys Solutions, LLC

Office Depot Credit Plan

Pacific Office Automation

Pacific Office Automation

BOARD - MONTHLY CHECK REGISTER - 1009 NWR ACCOUNT

Transaction Description

NWR

PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
BUS PASS

PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
WATER

CARD CHARGES

COMPUTER SUPPORT

NWR OFFICE SUPPLIES

NWR COPIES

NWR COPIER LEASE

Page: 2



Document Document
Number Date

4360 1/7/2021
4361 1/7/2021
4362 1/7/2021
4363 1/7/2021
4364 1/7/2021
4365 1/7/2021
4366 1/14/2021
4367 1/29/2021
4368 1/29/2021
4369 1/29/2021
Report Total

Date: 2/12/21 03:03:52 PM

Tillamook County Transportation District

Check/Voucher Register
1011 - Prop. Mgmt. Checking
From 1/1/2021 Through 1/31/2021

Transaction
Amount Payee
650.00 CHRISSY'S CLEANING SERVICE
13,083.10 DANIEL E KEPHART
109.00 JNB MECHANICAL, INC.
325.00 North Coast Lawn
398.96 TILLAMOOK CITY UTILITIES
167.95 CITY SANITARY SERVICE
464.82 Marie Mills Center, Inc
4,305.25 JNB MECHANICAL, INC.
1,885.00 North Coast Lawn

2,485.56

23,874.64

Tillamook PUD

Transaction Description

JANTITORIAL

CARPET PROJECT
HVAC

JANITORIAL

WATER AND SEWER
GARBAGE
JANITORIAL

HVAC

LANDSCAPING
ELECTRIC AND LOAN

Page: 1

\S\d



Date |Vendor

12/24/21 {FRED MEYER
 12/28/21 [VIRTUAL POSTMAIL

| 12/24/21 !I_R_O_N_ MOUNTAIN

| 12/24/21 |ADOBE ACROPRO
01/04/21 (ENDICIA

| 01/04/21 |LANGUAGE LINE
| 01/06/21 |LANGUAGE LINE
'01/06/21 |ADOBE ACROPRO
'01/19/21 LANGUAGE LINE
01/21/21 |LANGUAGE LINE
| 01/21/21 |AMAZON.COM

| 01/25/21 AMAZON.COM
'01/25/21 ADOBE ACROPRO
01/25/21 'WERNERS
01/25/21 ILANGUAGE LINE
| 01/25/21 [IRON MOUNTAIN

[ 01/25/21 AMAZON.COM

| 12/24/21 AMAZON.COM
 12/24/21 MTCPRO
| 01/13/21 60'S CAFE
01/20/21 [USPS

01/25/21 IMTCPRO

12/30/21 | AMAZON.COM
12/;,(_)/21_|CRESCENT STATION
12/30/21 | DUTCH BROS
12/31/21 |NEXT DAY FLYERS
01/04/21 WERNERS

'01/06/21 | VISTA PRINT
'01/12/21 |LABORLAWCENTER
01/15/21 |RECESS FOOD
01/19/21 | AMAZON. CoM

01/19/21 |ENDICIA
01/19/21 |ENDICIA
01/20/21 |USPS

| 01/21/21 /AMAZON.COM
01/21/21 AMAZON.COM

01/21/21 AMAZON.COM
01/22/21 | AATRIX/ABILA

| 01/04/21 | POPEYES
'12/24/21 |CARLS JR
01/04/21 |POPEYES

01/04/21 |POPEYES
01/08/21 POPEYES
01/11/21 COSTCO
| 01/22/21 |SPIRIT MOUNTAIN BUFFET

'UMPQUA BANK: CLOSING DATE 1/25/2021
| Description of Transaction

DOUG PILANT
'EMPLOYEE RECOGINITION/HOLIDAY
POSTAGE

| “’|m'm

I ~ CATHY BOND

|SHREDDING

_ | ADOBE SOFTWARE
{POST_AGE -

_INWR TELEPHONE
NWR TELEPHONE
'ADOBE SOFTWARE
'NWR TELEPHONE
NWR TELEPHONE -
__ COMPUTER MONITOR STANDS
~|COMPUTER MONITOR STANDS
|ADOBE SOFTWARE - -

IMEALS/CATHY & TABATHA BOARD MEETING
NWR TELEPHONE
SHREDDING

|SHOP SUPPLIES/MOP

|
A S S N
n | n|en |

L5

9 69‘(9

BRENT OLSON
_|DISPATCH RADIO MICROPHONE
|SOFTWARE
'MEALS/BRENT & EMPLOYEE MEETING
\POSTAGE
' SOFTWARE

©» en|ya"?m- |-m-ee.im ©® mleel- !{-ﬂ:(ﬂ

"TABATHA WELCH
| MEMBERSHIP
\MEALS/BRENT & TABATHA PAYROLL
|MEALS/BRENT & TABATHA PAYROLL
'SUCCESS NOTES -
_ |COVID-ALL STAFF MEALS - -
_IMAILING LABELS
|OFFICE POSTER ~
_ |IMEALS/TABATHA TRAINING -
IMEMBERSHIP
|POSTAGE
|POSTAGE
|POSTAGE
_ OFFICE SPACE HEATER
~|OFFICE BULLETIN BOARD

OFFICE BULLETIN BOARD

1099 FILING FEES/ABILA

|
oo

mm|y—> »en

|
|
len|en

CLAYTON NORRBOM

~GREDIT
'MEALS/BUS SHUTTLE
'CREDITED OFF
'MEALS/BUS SHUTTLE $
~ MEALS/BUS SHUTTLE - 'S
~|BUS SANITIZING/CLEANERS 5
$
$

e

MEALS/BUS SHUTTLE

| STATEMENT TRUE UP
Charges total| $
Grand Total| §

1

APPROVAL

DATE

B Ammmt"

384.48
25.00
409. 48

99.51

79.99
9.95
43.45
43.45
2499
23.70

~ 11.85
1,019.70
319.89
79.99
30.00
39.50
~100.31
25.87
~1,952.15

103.96
60.00
17.00
424

~60.00 |
245.20 |

12.89
16.20
9.00
82.18

262.00

75.34
37.90
28.80
12.99

 39.85

24.99

25.99
10139

2233
126.48

 978.43

(17.98)
20.77
17.98

17.98 |

_ 20.48
31.28
- 20.00

110.51

3,695.77

3,695.77

100.00

1,



UMPQUA BANK

January 2021 Statement
... Open Date: 12/24/2020 Closing Date: 01/25/2021

3 Visa® Company Card with Rewards

Account:

Cardmember Service

Page 10of 5
7790

(: 1-866-552-8855
15

Payment Options: .| with a check

Please detach and send coupon with check payable to. Cardmember Service

UMPQUA BANK

24-Hour Cardmember Service: 1-866-552-8855

tl . to pay by phone
i . to change your address

00003210201 8P 000638704014871P Y

TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

3600 3RD ST STE A
TILLAMOOK OR 97141-2730

Mail payment coupon

TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 001469460) BUS 30 ELN 8
New - $3.695, Activity Summary
Previous Balance + $4,270.70
Payments - $4,270.71CrR
Other Credits - $17.98¢cr
Reward Points Purchases + $3,713.75
Earned This Statement 3,844 i:ifa”‘::egra”smrs gggg
Reward Center Balance 70,402 nees. :
as of 01/24/2021 Other Debits $000
i Fees Charged $0.00
For details, see your rewards summary. Interest Charged $0.00
New Balance = $3,695.76
Past Due $0.00
Minimum Payment Due $37.00
Credit Line $10,000.00
Available Credit $6,304.24
Days in Billing Period 33

Pay oniine at
== __, mMyaccountaccess.com

Pay by phone
(: 1-866-552-8855

CPN 001469460

A57E2

Account Number
Payment Due Date
New Balance

Minimum Payment Due

7790
2/22/2021
$3,695.76

$37.00

Amount Enclosed

Cardmember Service

P.O. Box 790408
St. Louis, MO 63179-0408

AU RR BT AR T AR R WU R




LT
i ;;.
.lu...ll:

UMPQUA BANK

January 2021 Statement 12/24/2020 - 01/25/2021 Page 20f5
TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 001469460) Cardmember Service {{ 1-866-552-8855

Rewards Center Activity as of 01/24/2021
Rewards Center Activity* 0
Rewards Center Balance 70,402

*This item includes points redeemed, expired and adjusted.

This Year
Rewards Earned Statement to Date
Points Earned on Net Purchases 3,544 3,544
Gas, Restaurants & Telecom Double Points 300 300
Total Earned 3,344 3,a4ﬂ

For rewards program inquiries and redemptions, call 1-888-229-8864 from 8.00 am to 10.00 pm (CST)
Monday through Friday, 8:00 am to 5:30 pm (CST) Saturday and Sunday. Automated account information is
available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.

—r

Paying Interest: You have a 24 to 30 day interest-free period for Purchases provided you have paid your
previous balance in fuil by the Payment Due Date shown on your monthly Account statement. in order to
avoid additional INTEREST CHARGES on Purchases, you must pay your new balance in full by the
Payment Due Date shown on the front of your monthly Account statement.

There is no interest-free period for transactions that post to the Account as Advances or Balance Transfers
except as provided in any Offer Materials. Those transactions are subject to interest from the date they post
to the Account until the date they are paid in full.

Speed through checkout while earning rewards with PayPal. Go to the Mobile App or manage your account
online. Link your card to PayPal today.

Manage expenses with a new, simple, yet powerful and free tool. Visa Business Reporting allows a more
efficient way to manage expenses. Track spending, run custom rer:orts and sync transactions with
accounting software Iike Intuit Quickbooks Online and Xero. Enroll today at myaccountaccess.com/vbr

IS PILANTDOUGLAS I - ~ CreditLimit $5000

Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation

12/24 12/23 1516 FRED-MEYER #0377  TILLAMOOK OR $384.48

12/28 12/27 5543 VIRTUALPOSTMAIL.COM 909-235-6245 CA $25.00
Total for Accoun __B $409.48

Post Trans
Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation

i | Purchases and Other Debifs
12/24 12/23 3449 |IRON MOUNTAIN 800-934-3453 MA
12/24 12/23 3312 ADOBE CREATIVE CLOUD 800-443-8158 CA $79.99
01/04 01/02 7956 ENDICIA 800-576-3279 CA $9.95

Continued on Next Page \( é



UMPQUA BANK

January 2021 Statement 12/24/2020 - 01/25/2021 Page 30of 5
TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 001469460) Cardmember Service c 1-866-552-8855

Transactions | BONDCATHY : L Credit Limit $2500

Post Trans

Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation
01/04 12/31 3828 LANGUAGE LINE, INC. 800-7526096 CA $43.45
01/06 01/05 5269 LANGUAGE LINE, INC. 800-7526096 CA $43.45
01/06 01/05 6205 ADOBE ACROPRO SUBS  408-536-6000 CA $24.99
01/19 01/15 1573 LANGUAGE LINE, INC. 800-7526096 CA $23.70
01/21 01/20 1015 LANGUAGE LINE, INC. 800-7526096 CA $11.85
01/21 0120 3141 AMZN Mktp US*6BOERSVA3 Amzn.com/bill WA $1,019.70
01/25 01/23 9962 AMZN Mkip US*NYBFX4153 Amzn.com/bill WA $319.89
01/25 01/23 70683 ADOBECREATIVE CLOUD 800-443-8158 CA $79.99
01/25 01/21 4620 WERNER GOURMET MEAT SN TILLAMOOK OR $30.00
01/25 01/22 6559 LANGUAGE LINE, INC. 800-7526096 CA $39.50
01/25 01/22 9660 IRON MOUNTAIN 800-934-3453 MA $100.31
01/25 01/23 8969 AMZN Mktp US*OP8029T33 Amzn.com/bill WA $25.87

Total for Account 922 $1,952.15

Post Trans
Date

Transaction Description Amount Notation

12/30 12/29 8885 Amazon Prime*SY3I01AC3 Amzn.com/bill WA $12.99

12/30 12/29 5020 IN *CRESCENT STATION TILLAMOOK OR $16.20
12/30 1229 1457 PP*TILLAMOCKDU TILLAMOOK OR $9.00
12/31 12/30 3581 DRIPNEXTDAYFLYERS  855-898-9870 CA $82.18
01/04 12/30 1892 WERNER GOURMET MEAT SN/ TILLAMOOK OR $262.00
01/06 01/05 2067 VISTAPR*vistaprint.com 866-6148002 MA $75.34
01/12 01/11 5257 LABORLAWCENTER, INC 714-754-1813 CA $37.90
01/15 01/14 5528 SQ *RECESS FOOD TRUCK gosq.com OR $28.80
01/19 01/16 4931 Amazon Prime*M70R708G3 Amzn.com/bill WA $12.99
01/19 01/15 2442 ENDICIA STORE 800-576-3279 CA $39.85
01/19 01/15 7335 ENDICIA 800-576-3279 CA $24.99
01/20 0119 1053 USPS STAMPS ENDICIA  888-434-0055 DC $100.00
01/21 01/20 9837 AMZN Mktp US*VZ1EW4443 Amzn.com/bill WA $25.99
01/21 01/20 1947 AMZN Mktp US*QJ7FKOXQ3 Amzn.com/bili WA $101.39
01/21 01/20 2116  AMZN Mktp US*Q30FASGK3 Amzn.com/bill WA $22.33
01/22 01/21 6291 AATRIX SOFTWARE 701-746-6814 ND $126.48

Total for Accouni 4146 $978.43

\“1

Continued on Next Page



UMPQUA BANK

January 2021 Statement 12/24/2020 - 01/25/2021 Page 4 of 5
.. TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 001469460) Cardmember Service (: 1-866-552-8855

&

E

Post Trans
Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation

‘Purchases and Other Debits
12/24  12/22 4856 AMZN Mktp US*SWOIMSWY 3 Amzn.com/bill WA $103.96
12/24 12/23 1960 FS *mtcpro 877-3278914 CA $60.00
0113 01/12 1272 CKE*60'S CAFE - LINCOL TUALATIN OR $17.00
01/20 01/19 9034 USPS PO 4031840298 GARIBALD! OR $4.24
01/25 01/23 0655 FS *mtcpro 877-3278914 CA $60.00
Total for Account 49 $245.20

Post Trans
Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation

Other Credits i
01/04 12/31 0476 POPEYES 12713  SALEM  OR $17.98cR
MERCHANDISE/SERVICE RETURN

e . 'purchase : S
12/24 12/22 7586 CARLS JR RESTAURANTS 8KEIZER OR $20.77
01/04 12/31 0479 POPEYES 12713 SALEM OR $17.98
01/04 12/31 0476 POPEYES 12713 SALEM OR $17.98
01/08 01/07 1114 POPEYES 12713 SALEM OR $20.48
01/11 01/09 6989 COSTCOWHSE #1058 WARRENTON OR $31.28
01/22 01/20 3860 SPIRIT MTNBUFFET GRAND RONDE OR $20.00
Total for Account 675 $110.51

S BILLING ACCOUNTACTIVITY

Post Trans

Date Date Ref# Transaction Description ] Amount Notation
S Payments and Other Credits 2
01/08 01/08 8 PAYMENT THANK YQU $540.54cr
01/08 01/08 8 PAYMENT THANK YOU $3,730.17¢cr
Total for Account 0 $4,270.71cr

Total Fees Charged in 2021 $0.00
Total Interest Charged in 2021 $0.00

Continued on Next Page



Tillamook County Transportation District

MONTHLY PERFORMANCE REPORT JAN 2021
RIDERSHIP BY SERVICE TYPE JAN JAN YTD YTD YTD %

2021 2020 FY 20-21 FY 19-20 Change
Dial-A-Ride Service
Tillamook County 693 1,026 5,652 7,442 -24.1%
NW Rides 493 686 3,061 5,227 -41.4%
Dial-A-Ride Total 1,186 1,712 8,713 12,669 -31.2%
Deviated Fixed Route Service
Rt 1: Town Loop 2,533 3,957 18,636 26,243 -29.0%
Rt 2: Netarts/Oceanside 501 760 3,117 4,660 -33.1%
Rt 3: Manzanita/Cannon Beach 1,841 2,749 13,627 21,266 -35.9%
Rt 4: Lincoln City 749 1,261 5,527 10,348 -46.6%
Local Fixed Rt Total 5,624 8,727 40,907 62,517 -34.6%
Intercity Service
Rt 5: Portland 361 693 3,132 5,993 -A7.7%
Rt 60X: Salem 616 859 3,956 6,921 -42.8%
Rt 70X: Grand Ronde 258 425 1,893 3,135 -39.6%
Inter City Total 1,235 1,977 8,981 16,049 -44.0%
Other Services
Tripper Routes 45 126 255 765 -66.7%
Special Bus Operations 0 24 516 1,327 -61.1%
Other Services Total 45 150 771 2,092 -63.1%
TOTAL ALL SERVICES 8,090 12,566 59,372 93,327 -36.4%
ONE-WAY TRIPS BY USER GROUP

Fixed YTD YTD YTD %
USER GROUP Route DAR FY 20-21 | FY 19-20 | Change |
General (18 years to 60 years of age) 4,094 190 31,681 50,314 -37.0%
Senior/Disabled 2,263 949 23,706 36,312 -34.7%
Child/Youth (less than 18 years of age) 547 47 3,985 6,701 -40.5%
Total 6,904 1,186 59,372 93,327 -36.4%
OTHER RIDER CATEGORIES Fixed YTD YTD YTD %

Route DAR FY 20-21 | FY 19-20 | Change
Ride Connection 64 418 522 -19.9%
Tillamook Bay Community College 130( 919 1,274 -27.9%
NWOTA Visitor Pass 38 523 913 -42.7%
NW Rides 453 2,741 4,058 -32.5%
Helping Hands Shuttle 14 287 795 -63.9%

2/12/2021

01-21 RIDERSHIP REPORT .xIsx

2



Tillamook County Transportation District Jan 2021

MONTHLY PERFORMANCE

Operating
Service Passengers Farebox Cost
Month per Hour Ratio per Hour
Dial-A-Ride Services
Jan-20 1.5 51.7% 77.15
Oct-20 1.5 43.8% 82.26
Nov-20 1.5 44.9% 87.54
Dec-20 1.5 44.9% 87.54
Jan-21 1.5 47.4% 87.88
l STANDARD 1.3 65.3% 56.36
Deviated Fixed Routes
Jan-20 6.0 8.4% 77.48
Oct-20 4.1 5.1% 84.23
Nov-20 4.0 4.6% 83.03
Dec-20 3.9 4.6% 88.26
Jan-21 3.9 4.5% 88.60
STANDARD 7.0 12.4% 64.60
Intercity Services
Jan-20 3.1 17.3% 87.42
Oct-20 1.8 9.7% 94.76
Nov-20 1.8 9.5% 93.37
Dec-20 1.7 8.6% 100.43
Jan-21 1.7 8.3% 102.56
|  STANDARD 2.9 31.5% 72.86
Other Services
Jan-20 54 9.7% 67.96
Oct-20 2.5 0.5% 75.34
Nov-20 2.6 0.7% 74.37
Dec-20 2.6 0.7% 77.66
Jan-21 2.7 0.9% 75.91
STANDARD 6.9 10.7% 67.00

Dial-a-Ride includes Central, North and South Counties Dial-A-Ride Services

Deviated Fixed Routes: 1 Town Loop, 2 Oceanside, 3 Manzanita/Cannon Beach, 4 Lincoln City
Intercity Routes: 5 Portland, 60X Coastal Connector, 70X Salem/Grand Ronde

Other Services: Trippers and Special Bus Operations



| abed %80E 19€'G16°L  1s0D 08 g JogeT ebespy _EPL
f444 e v0'0 %E 91 vi'e 0916 182°286°} [PL6'99Y  Z18'E9 088°8¢0°L S.9Civ PS0'€LS  S€0'9C 0p9’Le 2l8'68 068°cee S9JIAIRS QLOL 1|ej0L
0470 92’0 ¥0°0 %60 LT 16°GL g10'ce ErAA] GG8 gLL'CL 81g'c 080t £6¢ 06¢ LLL 1494 SNBSS JAYIO (101
000 000 €00 %00 ¢ 99'6L 6v6'91 £e0'y 199 609°0L 999°1L 66C'C 4 ¥ze 91§ 0 uonesedQ sng [efnads
0L’¢ 080 S0°0 %0 6¢ 60°LL 890'G 20c'L 61 60L'E 295 18L 891 99 jeierd 02 ssaddig
EERINEISPENTe)
I8 454 c00 %E’8 L'l 9520t GGO'yEG  |0L2'€et  CLEGL 1£6'19¢ L80'YEL 68198l  PSL9 €iT’s 1868 EidN 24 NETETVIEICTY
09°C 89°L 200 %9C Sl 89°1L0L Ogg'vel  |GEY'8C £09'e 06€'1L9 209'0¢ gevey GEG'L e’ £68'L 181°¢ SpUOY puel9) X0L
[A%%e] 90°¢ Z00 %6°G e 68°90L €55'v0C  [8LC'Ly £79'S LGL'96 LyG'es 9ZL'LL 0se'z rL6'L 966 ¥60°CL weles X09
o6€cl 44 200 %01 Sl 60'66 218'S0C  |L\WW'iv 9ZL'9 L6E V0L 8€6'Ly 895'99 8922 8.0'C zel'e €18'82 puejpod 50
I
86t o'l S00 %Gy 6T 0988 16C'Ge6  [259'6le  96L°0€ 256'c6Y /68°081L 66L°'1G¢ 6ZL'CH vry'oL £06°0¥ LGl |0y pajenaq jeloL
8¢ cll ¢00 %6'E <e 1516 98e’lve  [10€'4S 962'L 6L0°2LL 0.2'65 866'¢8 [4984 viv'e 12S'S L6V'6 AID uodur v0o
8y'v el 00 %0°G S¢ 6€°06 Ly21'6pE  |¥Z0'E8 (o]5-N 00°€8L ¥0€'2L €0v'00L  O¥C'y 698'c £29'el 1€€'21 ENUBZUBW €0
0ze 00'L €00 %SC A4 0,98 865'2CL  |€0L'6E 0LL'y 8899 cri'ee 9L LE 706'L Lyl FARSS PLL'E SpisuesoQ/sHeISN 20
[4%74 290 60°0 %G'S 69 1182 25T |vzZios 1262 9v0°LeL 18€'9C v€9'9¢ £50°¢ 989°C 9€9'81 £65°L1L dooumo] L0
Snoy paienaq
E9LY 0c'ic €00 %v ¥ gl 88°/8 vLE00S [£94°8LL  BBL'9L 8.¢69¢ 6166 988cel  09gL £69'G €148 /66'9€C HvQa [ejoL
1899 9902 00 %Ll 60 8E'L6 9e8's6c (92’0 9vG'6 cLL'est 6’29 90v°/8 [l 4 LE2'E La0'e 68¢'91C S9pP MIN
V'8 99°¢ €00 %10l £C 9z°¢e8 L8V'¥0C  |ZbS'8r i 2AA 29L°9L1 9€6'2e 081'Sy gel'e 95’ 259'S 80.4'02 apiy-v-lelg
SVINBG IpIY-y-EId
unyy/anNo
($) Jnor (Y2484 Apisgng oney noHy sed  ($)eiey | ($)s1son | (§) s1s00 (3) (8) s1s00 8150 Sl SINOH SINoH sibussed ($) Sl
SIS abessny ¢ uBussed xogoleq  sibusseq ApnoH 1e101 J08Ipu| IS0 108U peseq peseg Saniss pled alA sANES alA snuanay
jonusiay ’ ' AUnoy EGLEET alA ) alA aleq QLA
Leaz/oli 120c uer niy L

SOUBWLIONAd pUk So1Is1ie)S 9}eqQ-0)-IBaA

1202/0202 Ad lendy

Jo1IsIg uonepodsues] AJunos yoowe(fly




(=

z 9bedq
%1€ |£86'8s 187286’ 862EC6F | %lOb- |L09¢- ov9'ie we've %V'9e- |SS6'CE- 2LE'6S 12¢'€6 %8z~ S/S'/SL-  068ZZ¢ vV 08y S9OIAISS 01D B0l
%L'9L-  |02Y Y- 910ce 1E9°92 %¥'Gec- |66 06¢ 68¢ %l'€9- |leet- LLL 260C %Le6- [€9€2C- ¥0¢ 195'¢ $30INIBS JBUYI0 JeloL
%L6-  |CL8L- 6¥6'91 19281 %8°LL- |6h- vee €12 %119 |18 9lg 128} %0°00L- |Ov0'e- 0 0v0'e uonesadg sng |enadg
%0¥E-  |809°¢- 890'S 9.9'L %¥er- |06 99 gLl %499~ |0LG- SGT S9L %E19- |eze- v0c 12§ sJaddu.
SSOIAISS SN0
%6'LL  [28L'LB SGG9'VES  ZLP'ESY %S0 |92 £12'S £81'G %0vy- |890°2- 1868 6v09l %8Er-  |BLYPE- 8hL'vy £95°8L Anosa [eyo L
%p'GL  |BEG9L 0ec'vel 269201 %0 |S§¢ cee'L are'L %9'6E- |eveL- £68'L GeL'e %¥'92- |2hLL- 18L°E €28V SpuUoY pueld X0L
%G8l |91B'LE €65'v0C /€92l %971 le r16°L £88'L %8Cr- |G96'2- 956'¢ 1269 %L'€e- |05L'9- 760t 14741 wsies X09
%68l |62L'CE 218602 E¥L'ElL %0’L |02 8.0°C 8602 %L Lt- |198'C- zeL'e £66'G %y 8p- |Lel'le- £18'8C 000'95 puepod G0
AsIs
%V'SL  |€9l'tct  L6C'GC6  ¥EG'LOB %0t |66 PP 0L Sve'0L %9ve- [0L9'Le- 106'0v L1529 %V'8¢- |648°GC- LpS Ly 0zy'L9 SN0y paxi4 €207 [B10L
%y'SL |0GL'ee 98E'Lvc  9£Z'e0e %0V |ET Piy'e 1S¥'c %99v- |18y 125'S 8ve0L Y%V L= 1699 /6¥'6 ¥61°91 A uoaur] #0
%SGl |L¥6'9Y LyL'6PE  008°'Z0€ %01 |L€ 698'¢ £E€8'E %6'GE-  |6€9°L- 129'¢lL 99z'lz %y Le-  |9L8°0L- L€E°L) eLL'lg BlUEZUBI €0
%y’ GL  |69E'0L 86522l 622’904 %01 |EL vyl LOv'L %L€e- |EPSL- L11'E 099t %L 07~ |lyLe- pLL'E elerAle] BpIsueaVd/SHEISN 20
%t'SL  |e0e'8e 2.5’ 89z'esl %0l |ST 989°C 1992 %0'62- |209°2- 9£9'81L £¥2'9C %G9¢- [G99'9- €65°L1L 862’8l doojumoy Lo
3N0Y pareirad
| —

%l |CkSIvl-  VIE00S  G58'LY9 %9°le- |929°C- £69'G 0ze8 %C e |956'E- €128 699°CL %9'8C- [VLB'V6- 166'9€Z  0l6'lLEE Hva [ejoL
%97cE-  |266'Zvl- 9Z8'S6C  BL8'8Eb %Ly~ |082'¢- 1£2'€ L16'G %V iv- (99172 190°¢ 122°S %e0e-  [SCL've- 6829l €L¥'0LE SapPH MN
%L°0 oSyt 18¥'¥0C  LE0'€0C %¥cl- |9re- 9Gh'C 208’2 %L y2- |06L°L- 259'G [aa %L'e  |68L- 804'02 Lev'ie Spiy-v-eig
SOAISS SPIF-V-EId
souslaylg | sousishig 1507 (101 1500 [BI0L gousleyi | sousseylq  SINOH SINOH | ®dusseyIq | duslayg sibussey  sibussey 20UBIaNI] | SoURISYI]  BNUBARY  8nuaAdy uny/amnoy

JUELYEN unowy us2ed wnowy ERIINEIN ELRIIVELS Jusad Junowy usolad unowy aueq Qe

12/0T 0¢/el Le/oe 0z/6l Le/0e 0c/6l L¢/0g 0c/el

Le0g uer niylL L20g uer niyt L20zZ uer niyL 1202 uer niyL

uosiedwos Jea A-19AQ-1RIA

12/02 Ad 03 0Z/6LAd

JoLsIg uonepodsuel] Ajunon yoouweli L



%€ 0 {628°%) 69v'8L6'L  86C'€CH'L $1S0D {101
1268  $ %00l 4o.d snid = S1S0D peayIsAO
88'¢s ¢ o)ey AlInoH 4oeod %9'€T 8%2'68 716'99% 199°L.€ $}809 Jo8.a
%8 0e PESUIBAQD SNId sng |lews %P Lo (0£9'28) 088'8€0'L  OLS'LZLL )80 peseg AunoH
6Ll % a1y AunoH UBAILA %l'Z- (Lpb'L)) SL9'TLY 2zL'vey 100 paseg abesy
%Z'E §}80D 108413 Snig odd peaylen) BNy %0 0L~ (228'e9) ¥50'€LS LE9'9E9 abes|n
066 § aley Apnon |emoy %01 g Sh Soualeg|d  @ousRuIa Lz/0z 0z/6L uopduosag
:uone|nafes ajey AlnoH snid snid :uone|nafed st Jad 3s0n Jusded  junowy 12/0Z Ad @ 02/6 LA
1509 uonenoe) uonesado sng |epadg 120z uer ybnoiyl QiA uosuedwon
¢ afiey
%39S 82’0 'S Sl'g %EPE  |%lE %e 9L %076 Y%l 8" Li- A 6'¢ %SGl 9zCl 09°16 PE'BL SIVINBS IBRO [BJOL
%v'8L-  |96°0 9¢0 €' %S06-  |%8'8- %60 %l B %905~ L' Lz 'S %L L)L S6'L LB'GL 96°L9 SSOINBS JBUIO [BIOL
%0 00L-  [PSL- 000 S %0004 |%670L- %00 %601 Y%l 2GS 9z €T 6t %6'6 289 95'GL G189 uonesadQ sng [eoeds
%l 9L 3] 08'0 690 %V Ly |%8C %0t %69 Y%l Lt- 55 6'¢ 9’9 %991 1601 60°LL 1199 siaddu|
S0INBS BN
%¥'0 c0'0 (454 4 %TTG  |%l'6 %8 Y%t L)L % i - Ll L'e %ELL PLGL 95'20L [4 k] Ayuelu| 18101
%6'le |00 891 BEL %C'9E  [%SL- %9°C %0t %P 8E- 0'L- Sl Sz %L L1 8C'GlL 89°10L 0v°98 3pUOY PURISH X0L
%091 v'o 90’ 92 %Ly %Lt %6'S %904 %8 ey 9L~ 1z L'E %99t 0’6l 68°901 69'L6 waes xX09
%E |- eLo- 22’6 vE'8 %995~ |%E8L- %0 L %E'TE %2 8 AN S 6'C %8'LL 96l 6066 L8 pueod G0
Qi)
%8G 90°0- ot 80l %99 |%6E- %S v %8 %C GE- Le X3 09 %E YL clhl 09'88 8v'LL {IN0Yy pajeira( [ejo L
%86 SL'0 L'l N %l Bl |%YE- %6'E Yol'L Y%l Lt Oe- %12 [44 %L YL 611 1516 8£°G8 ANID UjoouIT %0
Y%y'2- €0'0- 21 oe’L %8G | %Z %0'G %C'6 %G 9¢- 0z gt §'G %b' vl BE'LL 6£°06 00'6Z BJIUBZUBW €0
%P Ll-  |elo- oot €L %L8  |%be- %5C %8'v %L € Li- 44 g'e %E Y1 98°'0L 0.°98 ¥8°GL apIsuesd/sueieN z0
%901~ [L0°0- 290 040 %0°St  |%S %S'S %00} %/, 62~ 6¢ 6'9 6'6 %'l 68'6 LL8L 93'89 dooq umoy L0
3oy LEl]
%8'E a0’y 0Z' 2 0c'gc Yot 8- Yol 7 Y%b 'Ly %l'LG %50 0o ) Sl %6'EL €2°0L 88'48 SLLL yva oL
%06L  |227HL 99°04 62'65 Y%b't Y%b'Z Y%l €L %204 % 0 0o 60 60 %6 7L g8l 8€°16 £6'61 SOPIY MN
%892 840 99'¢ 68°C %b 't %S0 %101 %901 % e L- o 54 PArA %6l 0801 fer At} sves APIY-v-1e1q
SNBSS Spry-v-B!Id
W3 usdleg | Ji unowy EICE] EICE W UedRg | gig Junowy oney oney W3 uedled | Mg wnowy INOH/ INOH/ Hia uedled | mg unowy oy AUNOH sy ApPnoH uny/eInoy
abessny aberay X0ga.eq X0qaieq JBusseq JBusseg
12/02 0z/61 L2/02 0c/61 Le/oz 0z/61 L2/0e 0¢/el
Lcoz vep niyt LcOg uer niy L Lgog uer niy Lg0g ver niy g

12/0Z Ad 03 02/6LAd
uosiieduwion souBWLIONDd B 0} JBaA 1914351 uoneuodsues] Aunos yoowe||i



WCONNECTOR

Coordinating Committee - Meeting
January 15, 2021
Tillamook County Transportation District
3600 3™ St
Tillamook, OR
10:00 am—12:00 pm

Join Zoom Meeting:
https://us02web.zoom.us/[/81827076871
12532158782
Meeting ID: 818 2707 6871

Agenda
10:00— , D Pilant
10:05a 1. Introductions. Welcome to guests. oug
2. Consent Calendar (Action Items)
= December 11, 2020 Meeting Minutes (Attached)
10:05— ®  December 2020 Financial Report Doug Pilant/All
10:15a ®=  Ridership Tracking
®  Calculating Average Passenger Miles Update
= Updating NWConnector Performance Measures
3. NWOTA Standing ltems
® |GA Distribution (Attached)
= Marketing:
—  Visitor Pass/Map update (Hailey) )
10:15— — NWoConnector Information Card (Hailey) BoUgRitantAll
10:302 —  Pictures of Bus Stops Without OXO Logo (Doug)
+  Website
—  GTFS-Flex Local Partners (Mary)
— Add a bicycle page (Mary)
4. NW Connector Social Media Marketing/Online Ticketing .
10:30— = Updates from December NWOTA Meeting and January 8, 2021 Doug Pilank/All
10:45a Workshop (Notes Attached)
10:45— 5. OpenStreetMap Research and Memo Doug Pilant/All
11:00a # Adding first/last access to bus stops to NWConnector website.
11:00— . . L Doug Pilant
11:05a 6. STIF—Discretionary Application Update Joff Hazen
11:05— 7. COVID-19 Transit/NW Connector Updates Alll
11:150a 4 Sanitizer System Purchase Update
11:15— 8. Other Business and Member Updates
12:00p 4 2021 Meeting Schedule (attached) Al

www.nwconnector.org

SUNSET
TRANSPORTATION

SERVICES




Attachments:

December 11, 2020 Meeting Minutes NWOTA 2021 Meeting Schedule
January 8, 2021 OSM/Online Ticketing Workshop

NWOTA meetings are open to the public and accommodations will be provided to persons with disabilities. If a
sign language interpreter is needed, please call Mary McArthur at 503.397-3099 at least 48 hours prior to the
meeting.

NWConnector December 11, 2020 Agenda 2|Page :;‘



NW Oregon Transit Alliance (NWOTA)
Coordinating Committee Meeting Minutes (via Zoom)
December 11, 2020
Tillamook County Transportation District
Tillamook, OR

1. Introductions: Doug Pilant, Coordinating Committee Chair, opened the meeting. Meeting attendees
included:

John Dreeszen—Columbia County Rider

Brad Dillingham—Benton Area Transit

Jeff Hazen, Mary Parker—Sunset Empire Transportation District
Doug Pilant—Tillamook County Transportation District

Cynda Bruce—Lincoln County Transit

Ken Shonkwiler—ODOT

Kathy Kleczek—NW Oregon Transportation Options

Thomas Craig, Juliet Eldred, Chris Perry—Trillium Transit
Ayreann Colombo, Mary McArthur—Col-Pac EDD

2. Consent Calendar: Unanimously approved. (CB/BD)

November 13, 2020 Meeting Minutes—No changes.

November 2020 Financial Report—Only change from October was $227.20 for Carole
Richardson starting the update of the NWConnector performance metrics.

Ridership Performance Report— December numbers are going to get worse as get into COVID
shutdowns for the holidays. People are staying home. Typical riders are only those that need
transit, not those who can choose to ride.

Calculating Average Passenger Miles Progress—Need to get average passenger miles from the

partners before Carole will be able to update. Doug has compared TCTD performance metrics
before to after the pandemic. Dramatic change.

3. Social Media Marketing Presentation/Workshop

Since there is some marketing and trip planning budget left, the NWOTA partners may want to look
at doing more social media. Thomas provided a workshop on how to use social media, and when to
use it. Important to remember that transit social media competes with a lot of other social media
communications. Social media is one optional part of online strategy. important to leverage what it
does well and only for what is valuable.

Different social media platforms:

NWOTA December 11, 2020 Board Meeting Minutes 1|Page

Facebook—Huge, 2.5 billion users each month. Largest social media advertiser in the world.
Different category of users, with different tools for the different types of groups. the way in
which Facebook presents business posts are different than casual Facebook user posts.
Facebook tends to have an older audience than other platforms.

Twitter—330 million users each month. Lower engagement. Not as universal a reach as
Facebook. Lower advertising engagement, generally interest is in new advertising.
LinkedIn—660 million registered, 330 million users. Good for business marketing, tapping into
professional networks, employee hiring.

instagram—1 billion active users. All account types are set up the same, little difference
between company and personal users. Photo focused. More interest in new things.

U Tube—1.9 billion active users, 70% of videos fed by UTube algorithm.



What can transit agencies do with social media?

Inform about changes and initiatives (not service alerts). More high level
Increase standing in the community

Provide education resources

Make requests (employees, participation). Call for action

Advertise services

What will it take?

Maintain policies that define usage, maintain consistency over time, rules of the road
Create a helpful profile

Post content on a regular basis

Pay attention to changes in media patterns

Respond to messages and content

Goals for using social media {Metrics)

Number of followers
Engagement, people responding
Conversion

Typical social media activities

Refine profiles for users, current and accessible

Post about events, things, news. Things that make viewer smile, upcoming changes, surveys
Follow and engage community. Be an active community member. Respond to other community
member posts

Respond to messages

Social media best practices

Use a 6 grade vocabulary

Be brief

Good pictures

Remember accessibility. Always use text too

Response times usually should be fast. Ideally hours, minutes or seconds

Don't post service alerts or do so carefully. Website is the core place for service alerts. Not all
riders use social media, or think of social media for alerts. Social media is for marketing. Since
typically alerts are not about positive information, alerts on social media are necessarily good
marketing. Yes—Mask notifications, upcoming holiday or service changes

When is social media valuable

Social media is marketing not customer information
Marketing is about:

— Raising brand awareness

— Reach new customers

-~ Retaining customers and increasing ridership

Advertising on social media

Nearly all social media usage is free advertising

Social media companies are “freemium” services

Each company will accept payment to show your posts to more people, or advertise on their
platform

NWOTA December 11, 2020 Board Meeting Minutes 2|Page g(/\



Discussion

® SETD. Live broadcasting on Facebook because of COVID. Amount of engagement is amazing.
Pushing 200 people. Great opportunity for public engagement. In-person meetings would draw
only a handful of people. Mary Parker watches the comments that come up and can share them
live with the Board during the meeting. When follow up, then people continue to stay engaged,
asking more questions over time. Jeff gets alerts when people and ask questions on FACEbkk
and gets back right away.

= Lincoln—Want to have the staffing and support before start using. Will be really important.

= Tillamook—Best usage is when the District is involved in activities in the community, when
working on projects and photos of people. Also sent out TCTD’s STIF survey and paid for
advertising for the survey. Received 209 responses, rather than the normal 25—30 survey
responses. Well worth $50 paid for advertising. Not just responses from Tillamook County
responses, but Salem, Lincoln City and Banks and North Plains. Get good responses, increase in
number of people following us, and more interaction with the community. Why making the
investment in Facebook.

®=  NW~Connector has a FACEbood page. Haven’t had a post on it since August. Need to have a
strategy on how we keep that Facebook page alive, if not going to be posting anything right
now.

®  Postings—Postings our board meetings, potentially a public portion of the meetings.

Marketing Project
e Remaining budget: $10,000
e Approximately level of resources for social media marketing efforts:

— 3 hours per week content time beginning in mid-lanuary
— Ad spend/art purchase budget of $2, 500
— Monthly reporting on campaigns.
e Updating work Selena is doing is not included in the marketing numbers, but should change the
available funds significantly. ($500-- $800)
Website Project
= Remaining budget $55,000
®  Remaining deliverables
— Publication and marketing of open source website toolkit
— Hosting of trip planner and development of long-term cost plan
— Approximate budget available for additional website enhancement--$20,000
Trillium will look at how to house and have easily accessible on the NW Connector website.

Open Street Map (OSM) Research and Memo
Chris provided a presentation on what OSM is and how it works:
®  Free editable map of street environments
= Anyone can contribute
& All edits logged for accountability
Open Trip Planner utilizes the OSM platform and GTSF data
Open Street Map vs Google Maps Trends
= Google Maps Strengths
— More building shapes (algorithms)
e Satellite imagerOSM Strengths

NWOTA December 11, 2020 Board Meeting Minutes 3|Page



— Building shapes and names are more detailed (hand-drawn by locals)
— More private drives, service roads
— More secondary roads and walkways
= Both
— Street shapes and names
Who's editing OSM in the NWOTA service area
= Hobbyists
& Map enthusiasts
= Concerned citizens
= Amazon logistics (delivery)
Validation
= Metadata
®  Recent edits
= Edit authors
= Error detectors
Who is using OSM
®  Tri-Met, Cheriots
= Amazon (deliveries)
®  Apple (Missing maps project, humanitarian mapping, data improvement projects)
®  Facebook (RaplD edtor maps for unidentified roads in very rural areas
"  Microsoft (aerial imagery, dedicated team to improve OSM data
e ESRI—Live OSM data, always updating
Why OSM in the future
* Increased use by TriMet, ODOT, private parties interested in not having to go through Google.
Underutilized by governments.
»  Benefits—Reliable data. Fast/Reactive to change. Ability to improve
OSM Memo to ODOT—Encourage this memo be forwarded to ODOT as an outcome of the
NWConnector Trip Planner project. Provides documentation that further use of OSM by ODOT
would be good. Really becoming a legitimate and credible source of mapping. Would be helpful for
public transit agencies in the state. Trillium will follow up with the actual memo. Thomas will send
out to the partners. Discuss at the January meeting. (Juliet and Chris will join)

NWOTA Standing Items:
®  |GA—In progress. Collection of all the signature pages will be completed in January.

®  Marketing—In progress. Report in January on the Visitor Pass/Map update, information card
and pictures of updated bus stop logos.

= Website—In progress, report in January on adding local (last mile) partners and bicycle page.

STIF—Discretionary Application Update— Application has been submitted. Transportation Advisory
Committee been notified of the project and still needs to approve funding the project before
January. In the evaluation process, no questions yet. Technical review. Goes before for NWACT on
January 14™. Doug and Jeff will talk about their Districts projects as well.

NWOTA December 11, 2020 Board Meeting Minutes 4|Page

L



73

8.

COVID Transit/NWConnector Updates

Sanitizer—Had to withdraw the Sole Source purchase because another company protested and said
they could also provide this product. Next step is to refine the project specifications and seek up to
three bids that consider the additional specifications.

Partner Updates
& OTC—Working on funding scenarios for the 2024—27 STIP, and have 3 different hybrid funding
models. Public comment is open. OTC next meets on December 15th. Public Transit Advisory
Committee (PTAC) leans toward 2B, which allocates $245 million to non-highway, while
maintaining the Fix-it budget.
= Tillamook—Over the last 4—5 months TCTD has been conducting a fare policy analysis. In
addition to simplifying fare schedule and having an integrated fare structure throughout the
region. Also, trying to simplify the fares to improve operations, and are now preparing a plan to
communicate with the public the proposed fare policy. Looking at other areas throughout the
country for ideas and best practices. Amtrak and Greyhound selling tickets on behalf of TCTD is
really helpful. Have been thinking about the potential of adding sales of tickets onto the
NW~Connector website, both visitor passes and each of our local districts. Add ticketing to
January workshop. For example, the (Columbia River) Gorge pass can be accessed by
downloading an app that sends the pass to your phone. Saves having to go process e-checks
and sending out passes. Token transit, hop-through technologies. Will want to coordinate all
the partners are using the same application.
= Sunset Empire: Looking at purchasing E-Fare system by Dellerock. Used by Rogue Valley, Bend,
Lane County. Reasonable cost.
= Seamless transit—Will be nice if everyone goes with the same system. NWOTA and Benton,
Lane, Lincoln and Linn regions. Bottom line would like to be able for riders to purchase online,
and have an internet presence so people know to go there for passes/tickets. Being able to
have the pass on mobile devices/phone is critical.
= BAT Interline agreements with Amtrak take negotiations. Benefits outweigh the risks. TCTD
biggest issue was meeting their insurance and Oregon tort requirements. Since Lincoln and
Benton counties are part of the regionat system, may be able to piggyback onto what Tillamook
and Clatsop have. Tillamook could then ticket all the way from Amtrak to Salem to Tillamook.
An example of first/last 100 miles for out of state/country travelers. Tillamook and Clatsop will
share their interline agreements with Cynda and Jeff. Biggest risk is guaranteeing travel if
weather prevents a trip.
Other NWOTA Business
Partners agreed to change the 2021 Meeting Schedule to the third Friday of the month. However, in
January, partners will hold a work session on the OSM memo and the potential for adding online
ticketing to the NWConnector website on January 8" with the regular meeting to be held on January
I59,

Recorded: Mary McArthur, Col-Pac EDD and NWOTA Coordinator

NWOTA December 11, 2020 Board Meeting Minutes 5|Page /l)ra/



NWOTA Online Ticketing and Open Street Map Workshop
January 8, 2021
Meeting Notes

Attendees:

Trillium Transit: Thomas Craig, Juliet Eldred, Chris Perry
Tillamook County Transportation District: Doug Pllant
Sunset Empire Transportation District: Jeff Hazen
Benton Area Transit: Brad Dillingham

Columbia County Rider: John Dreezen

Col-Pac EDD: Ayreann Colombo Mary McArthur

Mobile Ticketing Options (Electronic ticketing)

Types of Electronic Ticketing
e Standard points of sale TCTD is in the process of purchasing tablets for their deviated routes,
which may have the ability to add electronic ticketing via a dongle, if the appropriate software
to do point of sale. Typically, standard points of sale are used for retail sales with multiple
different products for sale. Also, the equipment is generally not the best for a bus environment
where there is a lot of activity and movement.

e Online portals—Many pmerchant processors include an online portal through their services (eg
Square, Clover. ) Easy to set up, 4—8 hours by Trillium. Tickets or passes can be sold through
the website and delivered via mail (or, technically, email/phone). Each partner could set up
their own online store with their own tickets. Can change the ticket options. Works fairly well.
The only way to send the ticket/pass securely is to send them out by snail mail. Sending them
electronically, opens up the ability for fraud with multiple copies being printed out/used. Best
use is for passes, or multiple tickets rather than individual ticket sales. (Recommended for
NWConnector passes)

— Through merchant processors
~ Integrating with merchant processors

e Mobile apps—Large number of vendors, however they are starting to consolidate, which means
if you sign up now, may be bought out. Some are fully commission-based (Token Transit and
Hopthru). Typically a 10% commission, but can start up quickly. Some are flat-fee plus volume:
Masabi and Delerrok). Typically, $500--$2,000/month, thus best for large volume use. Some
companies are exploring cash-based payments, but they usually require a credit card. Different
company approaches and policies about date, integration to other systems. Trillium is also
watching the European market for applications.

Important to think through all the aspects, options before sign up for an ticketing option.

— % of-revenue vs flat-fee

e Hardware validation systems
— Mobile—based: Questions: How do you validate user/date of ticket. Electronically validate
vs visually validate. However, industry is transitioning away from closed loop systems.
— Closed loop and proprietary-based
— Open loop and standards-based—Common in Europe, and slowly starting to show up in the
US. Akin to the “tap” credit cards. Contact-less credit/debit cards are becoming increasingly

Page | 1 /})7]



in use in the US. Could be a simple $500 box on each bus that riders could tap and get their
pass/ticket validated.

— Hop—Aclosed loop system that sits on top of an open loop technology that connects to
other applications. Tri-Met could potentially be a vendor for NWConnector. Have a system
and the technical system to deploy and continue to keep updated. Inthe past, Tri-Met
pricing was very high, although it may have come down. Question: Is there interestin a
broader payment system through out the State. Thomas will connect the partners with the
best point of contact at Tri-Met. SETD has been looking at this for some time, and grant
funding runs out in June. Hard to decide when the best time to jump in, with all the
technology changes. Looking at Delaroc, based on use by other transit districts in Oregon.
Was interested in Tri-Met but the costs have been too high. TCTD has been waiting and
watching what has been evolving. Would like to be able to find something that would
technology that is already in use on their vehicles. Like the Hopthru system because it also
collects ridership data. Use Ecolane for our deviated fixed route buses.

— Cynda and Brad—Local COG has pushed forward with Token as their ticketing vendor.
Haven't received any information yet on Token transit, so not sure how to proceed.
Particularly if something was going to be set up for the NWConnector.

— Interline agreements with Amtrak and Greyhound is very convenient as they purchase their
tickets through them. Which would add another dimension to online ticketing.

OSM—Encourage ODOT to use OSM for broader purposes.
OSM—Map that is underneath Open Trip Planner. (walking, driving, bus directions)

Big question—Is the data in OSM current and accurate? How is the data validated. No one procedure,
so Trillium wanted to test the accuracy utilizing a set spot in the NWOTA region, and compared how the
data stacks up to Google Maps. Result: Google has a lot of building maps and shapes due to their high
quality satellites and shaping algorithms. OSM tends to be more up-to-date on the street-level, inter-
connecting paths level. OSM also is faster to update, such as new bike lanes, walking paths, new
signage. Tri-Met uses OSM for their Trip Planner.

Easy and quick to update.

Jeff—Has used and found OSM is better than Google Maps. Doug—Bike lanes are important to our
region, appropriate places for people to get on/off buses, coordinating with ODOT's work on the Oregon
Coast bikeway.

Next step?

- Send to ODOT?

—  Trillium—Look at coastal communities in NWOTA and update first/last mile most efficient routes
in some of the smaller connections on OSM and thus NWConnector’s website Trip Planner.
Improving people’s access to transit, pathways, bikeways, shortcuts, etc.

— Trillium will be preparing a proposal . May have budget left in existing website trip planner
grant. Chris will check with Thomas on the budget, and if there is, Doug will check with Arla on
whether this can be added to the contract. Will add to next week’s NWOTA Board meeting.

Recorded: Mary McArthur

Page | 2 ) '\«\



1 :98eq uelRA 2 193png 1A/ Hoday dOd A[yuon
%LL 0T LY L98°9CT 00°000°861 €CCELTY L16TLTI 00°500°01
%000 00°0STSY 00°0ST°S¥ 000 00°0 000
%00°0 000STTY 00°0STCh 000 o 000 00°0
%000 00°000°¢ 00°000°¢ 000 00°0 00°0
%¢£6°9T LY'LISTII 00°0SL°TS1 €STELTY L1I'6TLTL 00°S00°01
%000 00°000°S 00°000°¢ 000 - L9901y 00°0
%00°0 (€£8°L8Y°C) 0070 €8°L8Y'T 000 000
%LTLE 00°SHO°LY 00°000°SL 00°SS6°LT 00°0S2°9 00°0€L°S
%00°0 00°000°S€ 00°000°cE 000 L9916°C 000
%000 00°00S°L 00°00S°L 000 00°€29 000
%S8'1Y 0SLESHI 00°000°¢T 0$°291°01 £€'¢80°C 00°SL8Y
%CEY 08'2T0°S 00°0sT’S 0T’LTe 08°LEY 000
wmﬁo.o_ {00°000°€91) 00°000°861 00°000°€E 000 000
%000 (00°000°+9) 00°000%9 000 000 000
%00°001 00°0 00°000°CI 00°000°C1 000 000
%00°0¢ (00°000°12) 00°000°CT 00°000°1T 000 000
%00°0 {00°000°08) 00°000°08 000 00°0 00°0

%8¢ DUBLIBA 128png [B10], [enoy 193png porag [eNOY POLID]
198png [v10], Jea { JuaLn)) jus1Iny) JuLNy

0207/1€/71 Y3noay[, 0Z0T/1/21 Wwoid
BI|[V JSUBL], UOSAIQO) I1SOMYUMON - 80
JUSWIRIBIS [BIOUBUL]

LS uone)iodsusay, A)uno)) JOowe[i],

0816
0cle6

0cese
961¢
[61¢
061¢
c01¢
101¢
001¢

8lo6v
[16%
Ty
00¢¢

NS

INd 0S-¥0:€0 12/T1/T e

sasuadxy [e10]
SI9JSUBRIL], [B1O],
fed pun, Suipuy paeridoiddeun
pun, [eI2Ua0) 0] IJSUBI]
SIaJSuBL]
SIDIAIOS PUE S[BLISIBIA {810 [
Suruiel], 2 [9ABI]
100[014 $S900V JIsuRI]
u3Isa(1-9y AUSYI M
Funadey
20UBULUIBIA 91ISQIAL
poddng aAnensIUTWPY
SIOIAIDG [BUOISSIJOI]
SIOIAIS PUR S[BLISIBIA
sasuadxg

$20IN0SY [¥I0 L,
pung JLLS WO I19JSUBL]
puny [eIdusr) Wo.L, I3Jsuel],
oI 0] oured VIOMN
rende)) Sunjiom

$90IN0SY



(note: Zoom meetings are planned through April, with in-person meetings resuming in May depending

NWOTA MEETING SCHEDULE

2021

Meetings are held the 3™ Friday of the month

on COVID conditions)

January Friday, 1/15 10:00 am—12:00 pm | ZOOM
February Friday, 2/19 10:00 am—12:00 pm | ZOOM
March Friday, 3/19 10:00 am—12:00 pm | ZOOM
April Friday, 4/16 10:00 am—12:00 pm | ZOOM
Tillamook County
May Friday, 5/21 10:00 am—2:00 pm Transportation District
i Tillamook County
* . 9.
June Friday, 6/18 10:00 am—2:00 pm Transportation District
) Tilamook County
* X 9.
July Friday, 7/16 10:00 am—2:00 pm Transportation, District
. Tillamook County
* . 9.
August Friday, 8/20 10:00 am—2:00 pm Transportation District
) Tillamook County
¥ 17 : —2
September Friday, 9/ 10:00 am—2:00 pm Transportation District
Tillamook County
October Friday, 10/15 10:00 am—2:00 pm Transportation District
Tillamook County
November Friday, 11/19 10:00 am—2:00 pm TiraARSpOFtation DStk
i Tillamook County
% : 5.
December Friday, 12/17 10:00 am—2:00 pm T ranspottation Histrict

N



Regular Meeting 1/21/2021
Tillamook County Transportation District - 8
Board of Directors Regular Monthly Meeting '
Thursday, January 21, 2021 — 6:00PM
Transportation Building
3600 Third Street, Tillamook, OR
Meeting Minutes

1. Call to Order: Board Chair James Huffman called the meeting to order at 6:02pm
2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll Call:
Present
TCTD Board of Directors (all Directors attended by telephone/web)
Jim Huffman, Board Chair
Marty Holm, Vice Chair
Gary Hanenkrat, Treasurer
Judy Riggs, Director
Jackie Edwards, Director
Melissa Carlson-Swanson, Director
Linda Adler, Secretary

TCTD Staff

Doug Pilant, General Manager (via web)

Brent Olson, Superintendent (via web)

Tabatha Welch, Finance Supervisor (in person)

Cathy Bond, NW Rides Brokerage Manager (in person)
Hailey Fields, Administrative Assistant/Board Clerk (via web)

Absent
None

Guest

Arla Miller, ODOT Regional Transit Coordinator (via web)
Kathy Kleczek, NW Transportation Options (via web)
Susan Wright, Kittleson and Associates (via web)

Chris Kell, TAC Chairperson (Via web)

Carolyn Hill, public (via telephone)

4. Announcements and Changes to Agenda: None

5. Public & Guest Comments: Kathy Kleczek shared information about the “Get There
Oregon” website for people to see where their transportation dollars are going as well
as how much you spend/save yearly. Kathy announced that on Friday's at 11am she
hosts a Facebook Live talk show about transportation and invited board members to
be a part of the upcoming February 19" show.

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize staiements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker's exact words.

1 e

(-



Regular Meeting 1/21/2021
6. Executive Session: None

7. Presentation of FY 2021-23 STIF Plan: Kittelson & Associates — Susan Wright

GM Doug Pilant explained that Kittelson & Associates has assisted the District by
developing FY2021-23 STIF Plan the past year. He explained there have been a few
changes to the plan following the December TAC and Board meetings. GM Doug Pilant
explained the TAC met on January 19" and approved recommending the Board approve
the Plan. GM Doug Pilant introduced Susan Wright who then shared an overview of the
Plan's final draft. The final Plan expands low-income fare to the general public and student
transportation, renamed the South County Dial-A-Ride service to South County enhanced
transit service, and establishes a capital reserve fund and operations reserve fund. Board
Chair Jim Huffman asked Susan Wright to explain why the Port of Tillamook Bay is the
highest priority. She explained this project was a carryforward from the previous STIF
Plan and said it remains the top priority to reduce the use of Dial-A-Ride to that area.
Board Chair Huffman asked her if this is a long-term plan. Susan Wright explained unused
funding from the previous planning period can be forwarded into the next funding period.

GM Doug Pilant thanked Susan Wright for all of her and her teams hard work on this
project.

Director Adler asked is South County Dial-a-Ride service was a short-term service for
South County. GM Doug Pilant explained the intent is to begin with a local dial-a-ride
service and if there’s higher demand the route could be converted to a flexible route.

8. Public Hearing: Ordinance #3 Conduct on District Property (6:26pm-6:34pm)
GM Doug Pilant shared the grammatical edits and read and explained the new Section
1.25(4): Refusal of Service section that has been added.

REPORTS

9. Financial Report: GM Doug Pilant said the District has completed 50% of the fiscal
year. He explained that due to COVID the farebox return is only at 33% of what was
expected. Property Taxes received are at 98%. He shared that in the first 6 months
there were 3 paycheck months in July and December, which has inflated YTD payroll.
Professional services at 85% while there was a large jump in vehicle repairs. GM Doug
Pilant asked if there were any questions about payables. Director Hanenkrat asked
about document #15981, a $14,000 payment to 24/7 truck and auto service.
Superintendent Brent Olson shared that Bus 28 had extensive frame repair work that
was completed. Director Adler asked about food expenditures such as meals for a
board meeting. Finance Supervisor Tabatha Welch explained that purchases meals
on Board Meeting nights. GM Doug Pilant added that staff does not go home for meals
and routinely remain working until after the board meetings. Director Adler asked
about the large expenses for meals. Finance Supervisor Tabatha Welch explained
staff meals were purchased during the lockdown to support the #TillamookTakeOut
program and she said this would be paid through the COVID grant. Director Edwards
shared that the boards purpose is to support the GM and the staff of TCTD and discuss
policies and procedures rather than questioning smalil purchases. Director Hanenkrat
shared that taxpayer dollars should be more of a concern. Board Chair Huffman

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.

2 2%



Regular Meeting 1/21/2021
explained that all expenses are published on the internet for the public to see and
asked if GM Doug Pilant had anything to add. GM Doug Pilant explained that COVID
is stressful for all employees and that purchasing meals builds employee morale and
generates camaraderie among employees. He also explained the Chamber's
#TillamookTakeout program is an opportunity for the District to support local
businesses.

10. Service Measure Performance Report:
GM Doug Pilant reported YTD ridership is down 61%. Ride Connection service
ridership is -36% while TBCC -38%, Visitor Pass -58%, and Helping Hands Shuttle is
-66%. The YTD monthly performance and quarterly performance report were included.
Passengers per hour -29%, Cost per hour +25%, Fare box recovery -49%.

11.Northwest Oregon Transit Alliance:

GM Doug Pilant reported that beginning in January 2021, all future NWOTA meetings
have been moved to the 3™ Friday of each month. GM Doug Pilant reported that the
coordinating committee had a workshop on January 8" focused on mobile and online
ticketing options, and an overview on how OpenStreetMap can be tailored improve
riders’ access to bus stops. In the meeting packet, January 15" coordinating
committee meeting agenda, December meeting minutes, January 8" workshop
meeting notes and December finance report. GM Doug Pilant said he be working on
the sanitizing equipment procurement process.

12.Planning & Development:

a. Deviated Fixed Route/ADA Policy — No report

b. Fare Policy Analysis — Collaborating with Nelson Nygaard and Transit App to
conduct a public outreach process. Using online survey through rider smart
phones, conducting a Facebook campaign to encourage more surveys, and
distributing flyers on buses. Hope to conduct a stakeholder meeting in February
to review fare policy recommendations. Board Chair Huffman asked that Admin
Assistant Hailey Fields send out the link to the board so that they can share
this information with people who ride. Superintendent Brent Olson shared that
buses’ reader boards have advertisement to download the Transit App.

c. STIF FY2021-23 Plan — TAC met on January 19" to review and approve the
Plan. A Resolution has been included on tonight's agenda for Board approval.
The FY2021-23 Plan must be submitted to ODOT by February 1st.

d. STF and Section 5310 Plans — This will be the last STF application process
since its being merged into the STIF program. The TAC will meet on February
9" to review the STF and Section 5310 funding plans and will bring their
recommendations to the Board in February for approval. These applications
are due on March 15t

13.Grant Funding:
a. Rural Veterans Transportation Grant — Grant is fully executed. Brokerage
Manager Cathy Bond and Veterans’ Service Offlcer Nick Torres are working
together to implement the project.

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.

3 M\



Regular Meeting 1/21/2021

b. 5310 Discretionary — Grant money left over to purchase the Ecolane interactive
voice response module. Using Sole Source purchase method, which is also
on tonight’s agenda for approval by the Board.

¢. Section 5311 — Intercity bus bids were due today. Expect to have ready for
Board approval at the February meeting.

d. Section 5339 — Expecting to receive bids in the next couple of weeks. If
everything goes as planned, we will be bringing recommendations to the
February meeting for the Board to approve. Director Hanenkrat asked if these
buses will be propane powered. GM Doug Pilant shared that the vans and small
buses will be, but the larger coaches will not. He also shared that we will be
converting some of the fleet to propane and most of the fleet will be replaced
with propane powered engines. Board Chair Huffman asked about where the
buses will fuel, GM Doug Pilant explained the District will be building its own
fueling station on District property.

e. STF, Section 5310 Formula, and Section 5311 applications are due to be
submitted to ODOT by March 1, 2021.

14. Facility/Property Management

a. Transit Visitors Center — The purchase is in escrow and expected to close by
the end of March.

b. Alternative Fuel Facility — Staff has collected the necessary information to move
forward with a contract with Blue Star Gas to assist in development of the
propane fueling station site plan, construction, vehicle conversion and
purchase of propane fuel. A sole source document has been included on the
Agenda for approval by the Board.

c. Building carpet project — The carpet project has been completed.

15.NW Ride Brokerage

a. GM Doug Pilant reported District received feedback from CareOregon on the
BPA.

b. Brokerage Manager Cathy Bond shared that 11 of her drivers were vaccinated
at Tillamook Hospital, and the remaining 6 who wanted to receive it, are getting
it tomorrow.

c. GM Doug Pilant shared that Veteran's Hospitals are now establishing times to
provide COVID Vaccines to veterans. NW Rides will be working on a way to
help Veterans get to the vaccine locations.

16.Miscellaneous
a. Vaccination for TCTD staff — 17 interested employees are on Tillamook
Hospital’s list, and the District is next to receive vaccinations once they get
another “lot” of doses. Board Chair Huffman asked how long this will take. GM
Doug Pilant shared that it is a 2-dose system, that requires staggering the
drivers in the event they experience side effects and need to stay home.

CONSENT CALENDAR

17.Motion to Approve the Minutes of the December 17, 2020 Regular Board Meeting
18. Motion to Accept Financial and Operations Reports: December 2020

19. Motion to appoint Finance Supervisor Tabatha Welch as FY2021-22 Budget Officer

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation

marks report a speaker’s exact words. = \‘-\}




Regular Meeting 1/21/2021

GM Doug Pilant provided an overview of Consent Calendar items that need approval.

Motion by Director Edwards to adopt the Consent Calendar, with noted changes to the

minutes. Motion Seconded by Director Carlson-Swanson. Board Chair Huffman called
for further discussion; followed by none, he called for the vote.

MOTION PASSED

By Directors Hanenkrat, Holm, Carlson-Swanson, Riggs,

Edwards, Adler and Board Chair Huffman.

ACTION ITEMS

20.Motion to Approve Resolution #21-01 in the Matter of adopting the TCTD STIF
FY2021-23 Plan

GM Doug Pilant explained the Resolution to the Board.

Director Adler asked about reducing service to Port of Tillamook Bay and adding trips on
Route 4. She explained that she is hesitant about 6 trips to the Port. GM Doug Pilant
explained service to the Port was the Plan’s highest ranked service enhancement project.
GM Doug Pilant explained there are a lot of dial-a-ride trips originating from Trask River
Trailer Park, the County Corrections and Helping Hands. He believes this project’s 6 trips
per day is a good starting point and should result in a great return on investment. GM
Doug Pilant also explained the STIF Plan must be submitted to ODOT by February 1st
and if the Board changes the TAC’s recommended priorities it would trigger a process
that would take months to resolve and delay the District’s funding.

Motion by Director Holm to Approve Resolution 21-01 in the Matter of Adopting TCTD

STIF FY2021-23 Plan and authorize the GM to submit the Plan to ODOT. Motion

Seconded by Director Riggs. Board Chair Huffman called for further discussion; followed
by none, he called for the vote.

MOTION PASSED

By Directors Hanenkrat, Holm, Carlson-Swanson, Riggs,

Edwards, and Board Chair Huffman.

Nay by Linda Adler

21.Motion to Approve Sole Source Determination for Propane Consulting Services,
propane fueling station construction, bus/van conversion to use propane, and propane
tank sale and supply of propane

GM Doug Pilant explained the Resolution to the Board.

Motion by Director Carlson-Swanson to Approve Sole Source Determination for Propane
Consulting Services, propane fueling station construction, bus/van conversion to use
propane, and propane tank sale and supply of propane fuel. Motion Seconded by Director
Riggs. Board Chair Huffman called for further discussion; followed by none, he called for
the vote.

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.

5

A\



Regular Meeting 1/21/2021

MOTION PASSED

By Directors Hanenkrat, Holm, Carlson-Swanson, Riggs,
Edwards, Adler and Board Chair Huffman.

22.Motion to Approve the ATU Memorandum of Understanding for employees access to
the COVID-19 Vaccine.

GM Doug Pilant explained that this MOU is consistent with the District's COVID response
plan by providing COVID vaccine to employees free of charge. The MOU also provides
an agreement on how to manage individuals who experience side effects preventing them
from driving safely.

Motion by Director Edwards to Approve the ATU Memorandum of Understanding for

employees access to the COVID-19 Vaccine. Motion Seconded by Director Adler. Board
Chair Huffman called for further discussion; followed by none, he called for the vote.

MOTION PASSED

By Directors Hanenkrat, Holm, Carlson-Swanson, Riggs,

Edwards, Adler and Board Chair Huffman.

23.Motion to Approve sole source determination and written finding is to support the sole
source acquisition of Interactive Voice Response (IVR) technology for automated
customer callback software application service

GM Doug Pilant explained this technology will provide dial-a-ride and deviated fixed route
riders’ reminders about their scheduled rides by text or telephone calls. GM Doug Pilant
explained this will enhance customer service and improve service productivity.

Board Chair Huffman asked about the use of texting. GM Doug Pilant explained how the
IVR technology will contact people by text or phone call with reminders about their
scheduled trips.

Motion by Director Carlson-Swanson to Approve sole source determination and written

finding is to support the sole source acquisition of Interactive Voice Response (IVR)

technology for automated customer callback software application service from Ecolane.

Motion Seconded by Director Riggs. Board Chair Huffman called for further discussion;
followed by none, he called for the vote.

MOTION PASSED

By Directors Hanenkrat, Holm, Carlson-Swanson, Riggs,

Edwards, Adler and Board Chair Huffman.

Director Carlson-Swanson requested to Board Chair Huffman if she could add items to
the discussion regarding lunch expenditures and continue the discussion regarding
email. Board Chair Huffman allowed her to make her comment. She shared that District
employees are essential workers who do not have the option to work from home. The
benefit to these workers is far greater than the money spent by TCTD to provide lunch
to its employees. Director Riggs added that providing meals also helps the community
and local businesses, which is also important.

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.

6 W



Regular Meeting 1/21/2021

DISCUSSION ITEMS
24.Email Preferences

Board Chair Huffman explained that initially he was fine about board members having
District email accounts. He said Directors Adler and Hanenkrat have asked not to have
District email accounts due to the difficulties they are experiencing. Board Chair
Huffman proposed that board members express their email choice. Board members
requesting email to be sent to their personal email addresses: Directors Hanenkrat,
Adler and Huffman. Director Edwards said she wanted to hear from GM Doug Pilant
about the ramifications of using a personal versus District email account. GM Doug
Pilant explained that during his tenure several people from other Districts, SDAO and
legal counsel have asked if the District understands the risks of using personal email
accounts to conduct District business. GM Doug Pilant reported he investigated this
issue with legal counsel to understand the risks. He said they provided a legal
memorandum explaining the risks. GM Doug Pilant said several months ago he
learned that some board members wanted to receive their board packets sooner. After
discussing board packet distribution with staff, it was determined board packets could
be reliably sent to District emails on the day the packet was produced. Therefore, staff
created District email accounts for board members. After learning some board
members wanted use personal email he again consulted with the District's legal
counsel. They suggested the District create a form that board member would sign
giving staff permission to give out personal email addresses to the public and agree
to turn over their personal email accounts when the District receives a public record
request for email records. Board Chair Huffman said SDAO has 12 members of their
board who choose to use their personal emails. Director Hanenkrat said if the District
is requiring him to have a District email account, would the District provide him with
internet service and hardware to access it? Director Edwards said she was very
private and concerned about her personal email being subject to a public records
request. Board Chair Huffman asked who wants a District email. The following board
members requested correspondence to District email accounts: Directors Edwards
and Riggs. Director Carlson-Swanson stated she will accept her emalil
correspondence in whatever way the District prefers to send it. Director Holm said he
had already created a separate email account for District business when he was
elected to the Board and prefers to continue using that account. Board Chair Huffman
said board members should not use their personal email addresses for anything that
they would not share in a meeting. GM Doug Pilant said board members should also
remember to consider the privacy of email from their constituents.

25. Staff Comments/Concerns

Doug Pilant — Happy 2021! After 9 years, my favorite part of the board meeting is the
pledge of allegiance. Doing the people’s business is motivating. Thanked the Board
members and TAC member Chris Kell for being a part of the TAC. Grateful for
everyone's time because the District can’t do its business without everyone’s
participation.

Brent Olson — 2021 is going to be better than 2020!

Tabatha Welch — This is the time of year the Oregon Dept of Revenue schedules its
annual budget law classes. If anyone is interested in learning about local budget law,
| can share the class information.

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation

marks report a speaker’s exact words.

/

e



Regular Meeting 1/21/2021
Hailey Fields — Happy New Year! Thank you for your continued patience.
Cathy Bond- Happy Anniversary to Doug, Saturday will be 9 years, and we have
learned and grew so much and | am so honored to serve under you.

26.Board of Directors Comments/Concerns

Jackie Edwards — We had no executive session, but 2 people said we would be doing
a GM review. Perhaps in February?

Mis Carlson-Swanson — | want to acknowledge the process, 10 months ago when we
started meeting virtually, we thought it would be temporary and it clearly hasn’t been.
Being accommodating to those on the phone has been nice. Some things to consider,
not talking over each other and cutting people off, pausing long enough after asking if
there are any questions to let people unmute and share their contributions. She is
happy to share tips and tricks for Zoom meetings with the staff and Board. Happy
anniversary Doug! Thank you everyone!

Judy Riggs- Thank you Mis for your comments and also Happy Birthday to Doug on
January 30!

Linda Adler — The STIF advisory committee was a bit disappointing. | would like to see
South County get more attention. Happy anniversary Doug.

Jim Huffman — | hear Mis' comments and am looking forward to not having virtual
meetings. | would like to know more ahead of time when great things happen, and to
get things in the mail sooner.

UPCOMING EVENTS
Board Training — TBD

SDAO Conference —
February 3-4, 2020. Go to https://www.sdao.com/annual-conference to attend.

Adjournment: Board Chair Huffman adjourned the meeting at 8:17pm.
These minutes approved this 18" day of February, 2021.
ATTEST:

James Huffman, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.

8

N0



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

In the Matter of Adopting the )
Transportation Advisory )
Committee Special Transportation )

)

Fund (STF) Funding Recommendation RESOLUTION NO. 21-02

WHEREAS, Tillamook County Transportation District is eligible to submit
an application for $135,400 in Special Transportation Fund (STF) grant funding; and

WHEREAS, the Tillamook County Transportation District conducted a
project solicitation process to fund transportation projects that serve senior citizens and
people with disabilities; and

WHEREAS, the Transportation Advisory Committee reviewed the proposed
projects and found they were consistent with the priorities and strategies in the District’s
Coordinated Human Services Public Transportation Plan and ranked the projects in order
of funding; and

WHEREAS, the Transportation Advisory Committee recommends the
TCTD Board of Director’s to fund the following projects in Fiscal Biennium 2021-23;

Agency Project STF '
: Request ($)
Marie Mills | Transportation Program 35,321
TCTD Administration 4,000
TCTD Transit Operations 96,079
Total STF Requests _ 135,400

THEREFORE, the Tillamook County Transportation District Board of
Directors adopts the Transportation Advisory Committee’s Special Transportation Fund
Recommendations on this 18" day of February 2021.

ATTEST:

By: By:
James Huffman, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager




For Board Meeting of February 18, 2021
Agenda ltems # 16

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FROM: DOUG PILANT, GENERAL MANAGER
SUBJECT: TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE (TAC) SPECIAL

TRANSPORTATION FUND (STF) RECOMMENDATIONS

Issue

Shall the Tillamook County Transportation District (TCTD) Board of Directors accept the
Transportation Advisory Committee’s proposed FY2021-2023 Special Transportation
Fund (STF) project funding recommendations?

Background and Findings

1. ODOT has targeted TCTD to receive $135,400 in STF Formula funds in the FY2021-
2023 Biennium.

2. Oregon Administrative Rules (OAR) require STF monies to be allocated towards
transportation projects supporting transportation services serving senior citizens and
people with disabilities.

3. Qualified projects must also support the goals and priorities outlined in the TCTD
Coordinated Human Services Public Transportation Plan (Coordinated Plan), which
was adopted by the District’'s Board of Directors on October 20, 2016.

4. TCTD is required to conduct a local public process to solicit projects. Between
December 16, 2020 and January 15, 2022, the District advertised to provide other
transportation programs benefiting senior citizens or disabled residents to request
STF funding support. Only one (1) application was received from Marie Mills Center
to support that agencies transportation program.

5. TCTD will allocate the remaining STF monies to the fund the administration of the
STF program and to support the District’s transit operations.

6. The District must have an advisory committee review and prioritize STF projects.
The TAC met on January 25, 2019 and February 9, 2021 and reviewed project
eligibility and prioritize the proposed STF projects. The STF projects are listed in the
following table:

STF Projects:

STF
Rank Agency Project Description Request ($)
1 Marie Mills Center | Transportation Program 35,321
2 TCTD Administration 4,000
3 TCTD Transit Operations 96,079
Total 135,400




For Board Meeting of February 18, 2021
Agenda ltems # 16

Recommendation

Staff recommends the TCTD Board of Directors adopt the Transportation Advisory
Committee’s recommended FY 2021-2023 STF Plan project priorities.



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

In the Matter of Adopting the
Transportation Advisory Committee
Section 5310 Grant Request Rankings
and Funding Recommendations

RESOLUTION NO. 21-03

WHEREAS, Tillamook County Transportation District (TCTD) is eligible to
submit applications for $198,519 in Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with
Disabilities Program (Section 5310) monies; and

WHEREAS, the Tillamook County Transportation District conducted a
project solicitation process to fund transportation projects that serve senior citizens and
people with disabilities; and

WHEREAS, the Transportation Advisory Committee reviewed the proposed
projects and found they were consistent with the priorities and strategies in the District’'s
Coordinated Human Services Public Transportation Plan and ranked the projects in order
of funding; and

WHEREAS, the Transportation Advisory Committee recommends the
TCTD Board of Director’'s to approve funding the following projects in Fiscal Biennium
2021-23;

Project Local Grant

Agency Project Description Cost Match | Request
Marie Mills Preventative Maintenance 6,750 694 6,057
Marie Mills Purchase Transportation 13,728 1,410 | 12,318
TCTD Repair/Renovate Dispatch 76,000 7,805 | 68,195
TCTD Mobility Management 92,762 9,527 | 83,235
TCTD Propane Conversion 32,000 3,286 | 28,714
Total Grant Requests | 221,240 | 22,722 | 198,519

THEREFORE, the Tillamook County Transportation District Board of
Directors accepts the Transportation Advisory Committee’s recommendation on this 18t
day of February, 2021.

ATTEST:

By: By:
James Huffman, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager




For Board Meeting of February 18, 2021
Agenda ltem # 17

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FROM: DOUG PILANT, GENERAL MANAGER
SUBJECT: TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE (TAC) SECTION

5310 PROJECT FUNDING RECOMMENDATIONS

Issue

Shall the Tillamook County Transportation District (TCTD) Board of Directors accept the
Transportation Advisory Committee's proposed FY2021-2023 Enhanced Mobility of
Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities (Section 5310) project funding
recommendations?

Background and Findings

1. ODOT has targeted TCTD to receive $198,519 in Section 5310 monies for the FY
2021-2023 Biennium.

2. Section 5310 funds must be allocated to public transportation projects that will
support the delivery transportation services serving senior citizens and people with
disabilities.

3. Qualified projects must also support the goals and priorities outlined in the TCTD
Human Services Coordinated Public Transportation Plan, (Coordinated Plan), which
was adopted by the Board on October 20, 2016.

4. The Section 5310 Formula funding program requires a 10.27% local matching funds.

5. TCTD is required to conduct a local public process to solicit projects. Between
December 16, 2020 and January 15, 2022, the District advertised to provide other
transportation programs serving senior citizens or disabled residents an opportunity
to apply for funding Section 5310 support. Two (2) applications from Marie Mill
Center to;

a. Provide funding for preventative maintenance on its fleet
b. Continuation of its purchase transportation program

6. TCTD will allocate the remaining Section 5310 monies to the following three (3)
projects:

a. Complete the TCTD Facility Repair and Renovation Plan by completing
the renovation of the District’s dispatching center, and renovate the
Downtown Transit Center office space;

b. Establish a mobility management program to improve customer service by
expanding dispatcher and customer service representative (CSR) hours
and days of service, and provide training for customers to access transit
services;

c. Convert three (3) existing transit vehicles from gasoline to propane fuel.

il



For Board Meeting of February 18, 2021
Agenda ltem # 17

7. The District is required to have proposed projects be reviewed and prioritized by an
advisory committee. The TAC met on January 19, 2021 and again on February 9,
2021 to review and prioritize the proposed Section 5310 projects. A summary of the
Section 5310 projects funding for each project is listed in the following table:

Section 5310 Projects:

Funding
Rank Project Local Request
Agency Project Description Cost Match (S)

1 Marie Mills | Preventative Maintenance 6,750 694 6,057
2 Marie Mills | Purchase Transportation 13,728 1,410 12,318
3 TCTD Repair/Renovate Dispatch 76,000 7,805 68,195
4 TCTD Mobility Management 92,762 9,627 83,235
o TCTD Propane Conversion 32,000 3,286 28,714
Total 221,240 22,722 198,519

Recommendation

Staff recommends the TCTD Board of Directors adopt the Transportation Advisory

Committee’s recommended FY2021-2023 projects and priorities.



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

In the Matter of Authorizing the
General Manager to Purchase
Two (2) Category B Champion

Buses from Schetky NW Bus Sales RESOLUTION NO. 21-04

WHEREAS, the Tillamook County Transportation District TCTD) received an
ODOT Public Transit Division (PTD) Section 5339 “State of Good Repair” Capital Grant
#34225 and a Section 5311 Capital Grant #34242 to purchase one Category B
replacement intercity transit bus and one Category B Intercity expansion bus; and

WHEREAS, the District solicited quotes from three retailers for the purchase of
two intercity buses based on the price agreement the retailers have with the State of
Oregon Department of Administrative Services; and

WHEREAS, based on the quotes provided and District’s preferred specifications,
the District recommends purchasing two (2) Freightliner Champion Defender buses from
Schetky NW Bus Sales for $391,896; and

WHEREAS, purchasing a bus through the competitively bid contract between
Schetky NW Bus Sales and the State would provide significant cost savings to the District,
would not reduce competition or give favoritism, and would be in the best interest of the
District.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County Transportation
District Board of Directors:

that the Board authorizes the General Manager to enter into a contract not to
exceed $391,896 with Schetky NW Bus Sales to purchase two (2) Freightliner Champion
Defender Category B, medium size heavy-duty buses.
INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 18" day of February 2021.

ATTEST:

By: By:
James Huffman, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager




uoyoR|es S[olYBA 1SOD 1SamoT

UOIEILBUINOAC] BSBYAING BIOIUBA

UOISING HSUBI L 9and LOAQ

61/92/9 @4njeubis Jo AjeQg

:annejussaiday) Aouaby jo aumeubis

LioasnapjooLue|i@iuedp / §LLE-ZF8 (£05)

Jafeuspy [euauan) Jueld Bnoq

(mo)aq 4ojua) ssalppe pew-3 / "oN auoyd

ueWsoe|d [1jUco JoIW SjowWay pateay 10 ,pE o Buitado
100p Joj JUaWauNba) au 139Ut JOU PIP JBARID) 4} PUE (0729 SA 0SZZE Palayo) JusLunbal UOISSIUSUEN 3y} 39W JoU PIP YEI0RIS 3UL  Snd Jaype uo soads 14y painbay ayj 198l jou pip S0

(mojaq apn pue aweu pajuld Jajus) aanejuasaiday Aouaby

SJUIWWOYD

pajda|es JON O paa|ag JoN [J pPajd9es 0N X p2393]3g JON X
1pajoalss 3IDIYSA 150D I1Samor]

pajosjes [ papaes Y peaes pajoales [
. . . :suondQ patiajaid pue suonesyoads
03 8¥6'G61$ 806'G81$ L19'981% pauinbay YA 1500 2I91Y2A [B10L
] p . :(auou Jt oiaz 1ajud - Aue
LR 002418 OUEVES 41) suondo paiiagaid |EUOINPPY 4O 350D
. g . suoesyoadg
03 £28°181% 80Z'vLLS LIE'VLLS paanbay [IV UM 1500 3[9I4aA [el0)
186°LLS 1G0'GES 00%'1LES :suoljealyioadg pasinbay jo 3509
z68'€9L 1G1'6ELS LIS'EPLS @01 aseg adIyap
92S 114/ 4apusje( uaidieyn D1 ucnewRUL / [BISY Ye0EIS 0zs L114/koebar jereln :pasodoid |apoN/aNEN 3[01YaA

opuap MN Af1oyos iopusp S9|ES SNY SAIIBAID  LIOPUIA

‘(mofeg sUWIN|OD Ul SaWEN JOPUIA HasU]) SHOANIA WOXH A3.1L0ND SIDRId

(Juswnaop o is1 Yyoeny) aulQ

(usog s pulyeq SO IIe YaeRe) DY wold )

'suondQ paiiajaid [euonIppy

(3uawinaop 10 3s1; yoeRy) J3YIQ [

(uuioy siyy puiyeq S,DY IIE Yaene) DJY wold W

isuopesyoadg pasmnbay

Z :suogels vav Jo "oN gZ< :sjeas JENBay Jo 'ON

Z :pPaseyding ag o] S3PIYaA 4O 'ON

g :Aiobajed ay |njasp apoiyeA

NOILJFT3S 1S0QD LSIMOT - IHOH NOSIMVIINOI OHH INFNIFHOV FIoIHd FLVIS

S11€-Zp8 (€0S) "ON auoyd

leogig/ie 9keq

STIYE PUB ZPZYE "ON Juawaiby juesn

juejg Bnog

:u0sIad OB

19sHsIg uoneuodsue. | AJunod doouwejry dwenN Aouaby

\



Tillamook County Transportation District

Cat B Intercity Bus Purchase

January 2021

Background

Tillamook County Transportation District received 2 grants from ODOT for Cat B, 10
year /350,000 miles buses — Grant 34242 and 34225.

Grant 34242

Project Title: STP Tillamook County Transportation District #34242
Vehicle Replacement

item #1: Bus STD 35ft
Total Grant Amount Local Match Match Type(s)
$210,000.00 $188,433.00 $21,567 Local

Purchase 1 transit vehicle as follows: useful life - 10 years or 350,000 miles;
approximate length: 30 to 35 feet; estimated number of seats - 28; estimated number of
ADA securement stations - 2; fuel type - diesel.

Grant 34225

Project Title: Tillamook County Transportation District #34225
Vehicle Expansion.

ltem #1: Bus STD 35ft
Total Grant Amount Local Match Match Type(s)
$200,000.00 $170,000.00 $30,000.00 Local

Purchase 1 transit vehicle as follows: useful life - 10 years or 350,000 miles;
approximate length - 30 to 35 feet; estimated humber of seats - 25 to 35; estimated
number of ADA securement stations - 3; fuel type - propane. This grant was amended
to change the fuel to diesel, # of seats to 28 and wc stations to 2 to match grant 34242.

Total of 2 vehicles
Total grant allocation = $410,000 divided by 2 vehicles = $205,800 each (budget)
Bid process

Tillamook County Transportation District chose to use the current State Price

Agreement to purchase the buses. Bids specifications were written and approved by

ODOT on 12/17/2020. Bids were sent on 12/17/2020 to 2 State approved vendors in

the B Category — Schetky NW and Creative Bus Sales. Bids were due back on [ "?’1
1/13/2021. An extension was granted due to vendor request to 1/20/2021. f) /



Three bid responses were received on 1/20/2021 in the time specified.

Both vendors provided the required bid documents as stated in the RFP.

Bid pricing is as follows: All buses are seated at 30 passengers with 42” entry

doors.
TOTAL {each)
Extended Preferred with chasen
Options — Chosen preferred
Vendor Mfg/ Model | Required Specs . Extended x 2 buses only options |
Champion !
Defender $195,948
Schetky NW 28 +2 or 30 JFLT 82C £181,873 $363,746 $14,075 each | each i
Glaval |
Legacy/FLT $186,611
Creative Bus 24 + 2 or 30 S2¢C $174,911 $349,822 $11,700 each | each
[ Starcraft [ Eliminated
Allstar due to wrong
Creative Bus 24 + 2 or 30 XLT/INTLTC $174,208 $348,416 transmission
i Creative Bus
_Preferred Options Schetky NW Creative Bus Glaval { Starcraft B
Graphics 4875 4965
Additional Keys 350 105 !
USB Ports throughout bus 2550 1015
B standard tires (no wheels) 3500 2245 N
4 snow tires (no wheels) 2800 1850
Spare exhaust filtration i
system 9200 | Not quoted
interior ad racks Included 225
Extended Engine warranty 10
yr 2684 5330
Extended transmission 4 yr Incl above 765
1
Extended towing 1055
Extended a/c 3 year Included Included [
Additional seats to bring |
capacity to 30 1295
= — ==
|
TOTAL FOR CHOSEN OPTIONS
(nbold) 14075 11700 |




SNW Floorplan —Champion/FTL ~ 38’ overall length, 42” entry door, 30 pass, 2 wc
stations, 32" luggage Hip to knee 27-28”

T [ — —= — —— . — ot o -
usi | e J == WL N
£ = il = _I.:“-K A\
*"'=‘*“ y =TT Y

CBS Floorplan — Glaval/FTL ~ 36’ overall length, 42" entry door, 30 pass, 2 wc
stations, 29” luggage Hip to knee — 30 — 31”

= s VEIY :

.
E i

DEALER APPROVAL

[] AFPROVED

1 SCALE |
CUSTORMER SIGNATURE IN INCHES | |




CBS Floorplan — Starcraft/ INTL ~ 36’ overall length, 42” entry door, 32 pass, 2 wc
stations, 29” luggage Hip to knee — 30 — 31”

[
T

g 0 g

1§ =
] =

e e S —— T ==~ mat—

— A4

DEALER APFROVAL

| [ aPPrROVED

SCALE |
CUSTOMER SIGNATURE IN INCHES

] =]

R
|

e

ol

i

oo

Lnf ol
Bt
jacg s ST |".l
=

o
mm

Reference Checks — Asked about Service / Warranty for the last 6 months.
CBS -

Canby Area Transit - Todd

4 Has not used any warranty
4+ Service is ok. In the same city — so they drop off and get buses back within a
couple of days.

S. Clackamas Transit — Tom

4 Did a lift repair at the Canby location. OK. Done in fairly good time.

+ They seem to have problems with camera systems — bus delivered with no
power to the camera system and a bad camera. Was not checked before
delivery.

Woodburn Transit — Kathleen

+ Warranty — ok — Their warranty administrator is sometimes hard to get along with 6\0
4 Service is all done locally — have not used CBS -



SNW -

Clackamas County — Kristina

4+ Have not used them for the past year. No issues in the past.

Yamhill County — Cynthia

4 Very responsive with body issues. Chassis warranty takes longer.

TRIMET — Margo — Via email

Could you answer the following questions with regard to SNW service/warranty:

«  How responsive the vendor has been to warranty issues? Schetky and team have
always been highly responsive to all needs regardless if they are warranty related. Our
maintenance provider would reach out to them with an warranty issue and they would
oh the same day set a time/date for the vehicle to be picked up and the issue remedied.
Always show a sense of urgency and want to ensure the customer is updated each step
of the process.

= Have you used their maintenance or repair services? If yes, were they able to
provide the service in a reasonable amount of time? 97% yes. The other 3% is due to
they are waiting on a part from another vendor in order to complete the repair.

*  Have you had any major issues with customer service or shop staff? Never in the
entire 8 years I've done business with their company.

*  Are there any other issues or concerns you've had with the vendor, shop staff,
vehicle delivery, etc that you'd like to let me know about? None. They are a pleasure to
work with. Proactive and always willing to find a solution. They recently assisted us
with the design of a stanchion that we could use on one of our newer vehicles for our
fare vaults and also designed/built a stand of which the MDT’s are secured. Great
team, flexible, and highly innovative.

RFQ Considerations:

< CBS offered the B2250 transmission in the International chassis. Upon talking
to Alision dealer in Portland, he recommended the B220 for travel from PDX to
Tillamook in a 26,000 GVWR bus over the B2250 (school bus application
typically). Tillamook’s spec called for the B220, so | would eliminate the Starcraft
/ International from consideration for this reason.

< The RFQ required a 34” clear opening electric passenger door. The SNW bus
offered a 34.25” clear opening. The CBS (Glaval) bus offered a 32" opening with
a 42” door.

CBS - Cfﬂ




Passenger door will be 42” frame opening. Door panels reduce clear opening to
38”. Horizontal assist handles on door panels reduce clear opening to 32”.

SNW —
PROVIDED- 40” DOOR WITH 34.25” CLEAR OPENING — Meets specifications

% The RFQ calls for driver heated/ remote controls {o be mounted within reach of
driver and specifically NOT above the driver's head (on bulkhead).
o CBS states controls will be mounted on driver bulkhead - Not in
compliance with RFQ
o SNW state controls will be mounted as specified

Recommendation:

Award to SNW as they meet all the specifications required and are in budget.



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

In the Matter of Authorizing the
General Manager to Purchase

One (1) Category D Ford Metro-Link
Bus from NW Bus Sales

RESOLUTION NO. 21-05

WHEREAS, the Tillamook County Transportation District TCTD) received an
ODOT Public Transit Division (PTD) Section 5311 Capital Grant #34242 to purchase one
Category D replacement dial-a-ride transit bus; and

WHEREAS, the District solicited quotes from three retailers for the purchase of
two intercity buses based on the price agreement the retailers have with the State of
Oregon Department of Administrative Services; and

WHEREAS, based on the quotes provided and District's preferred specifications,
the District recommends purchasing one (1) Ford Metro-Link Category D dial-a-ride bus
from NW Bus Sales for $91,468; and

WHEREAS, purchasing a bus through the competitively bid contract between NW
Bus Sales and the State would provide significant cost savings to the District, would not
reduce competition or give favoritism, and would be in the best interest of the District.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County Transportation
District Board of Directors:

that the Board authorizes the General Manager to enter into a contract not to
exceed $91,468 with NW Bus Sales to purchase one (1) Ford Metro-Link Category D dial-
a-ride bus.

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 18™ day of February 2021.

ATTEST:

By: By:
James Huffman, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager

9

C[



uon3eS B|9IUBA ISOD 1S8MOT

UOHEIUSUINGOE SSBYANG B[OIUBA

uoisialg ysued | ognd 10Ao

1zo0g/e/e eameubis jo ajeg

:aanejuasaiday Aouaby Jo aunjeubig

woa sngyoowein@iveldp / 51 Le-z¥8 (£05)

Jebeuepy [essuag) ueid Bnog

(mojaq Jajua) sSalppe jiew-3 / "ON auoyd

(mojag apn pue aweu pajuwd Jajus) sanejuasaiday Aouaby

ISJuaWWo)
Pa103|3g 1ION O pajsajas JIoN p330313g I8N X pajoaeg JoN X
1pajd 1ys, SO SIMO
pajoajes [ pEIvdpes parpapes O pajosfes I e e
, . . :suondQ patiajaid pue suonesyoadsg
0% 897°16$ 1£6'901$ 281'GLLS paAInbay YA 1503 SPOIY3A [EIOL
:(ouou J1 013z Jajua - Aue
#1) suondo paisajaid [uonippy jo 150
. . . :suoneoyloadsg
0$ 207°'L63 2£6°9013 L8L'9LLS painbay Y YIM 150D 3[DIU3A (2101
£68'GLS Lb9'ge$ 0€L'0E$ :suonesyvadg pasinbay jo 1509
G/5'SL8 962'99% 257'648 1adld ased aoIysap
05¥3 Pia4 NuI>0na N [eS1aAILN [BARID) 05¥-3 22UeApY opeod|d :pasodoid [2pO/ONEN 2191YBA
dopuap Sajeg sNg MN Opuap S9|eS SNg 9ANE3ID IOPUA MN Afiayosg “._owcmi

‘(mojag suWN{o) Ul saweN JOPUsA Hasuj) SYOANIAA WO G31LOND SIDNRI

(3uswinoop 10 31 YoePy) JBPRO O

(unioy sy putyag 5,043 Ile yoene) D4y wWod4 X

'suondQ paiiageid feuonippy

(yuawnaop 40 3si| yaeRy) 1BYO O

(utio; S puiyag S DY 12 YoeRE) DAY Wodg Y

:suoneoypadg paainbay

€ ‘suoneig yQgy 40 'oN

¥1 :sjeag Jenbay jo ‘oN

| :paseydind ag o] Sa|21Yap JO ‘'ON

a :AiobBajed ayi |njasn aRIYSA

NOILOT13S LS0D 1SIMOT - NHOH NOSIMYJWOI DJH LINIWITFHOY F0Idd FLVIS

SLie-zye (€0S) ON auoyg

Leoz/ee =eq

ZyZre "ON juswaaiby juels

juejid Bnog

1U0SJad JOBIU0D

josuysiq uoneuodsued ) Aunod yoowe|i] swepN Aouaby




Tillamook County Transportation District
Category D Dial-A-Ride Bus
February 2021

Background

Tillamook County Transportation District received a grant from ODOT for one (1) Cat D,
5 year /150,000 miles bus— Grant 34242

Grant 34242

Project Title: STP Tillamook County Transportation District 34242
Vehicle Replacement

Item #1: Bus <30ft
Total Grant Amount Local Match Match Type(s)
$90,000.00 $80,757.00 $9,243.00 Local

Purchase 1 transit vehicle as follows: useful life - 5 years or 150,000 miles; approximate
length - 20 to 25 feet; estimated number of seats - 14, estimated number of ADA
securement stations - 3; fuel type - gasoline.

Bid process

Tillamook County Transportation District chose to use the current State Price
Agreement to purchase the buses. Bids specifications were written and approved by
ODOT on 1/5/2021. Bids were sent on 1/5/2021 to e State approved vendors in the D
Category — NW Bus Sales, Schetky NW and Creative Bus Sales. Bids were due back
on 1/29/2021.

Three bid responses were received on 1/29/2021 in the time specified.

% Only 2 vendors provided the required bid documents as stated in the RFP. CBS
did not sign the TVM/DBE certificate required by DAS/The RFQ and instead sent
in an outdated FTA letter for the 2019/2020 TVM/DBE award. After a
conversation with ODOT, CBS was eliminated from the RFQ consideration for
being non-responsive.



Bid pricing is as follows:

TOTAL (each)

Extended Preferred with chosen

Options — Chosen preferred
Vendor Mfg/ Model | Required Specs anly optians
Schetky NW ElDorado
Roush Clean Tech Advance /
64GGE Ford E450 $116,187
Creative Bus Glaval Eliminated
Roush Clean Tech Universal 24 due to non-
64 GGE /Ford E450 | $106,937 compliance
Creative Bus Glaval | Eliminated
Roush Clean Tech Universal 24 due to non-
41 GGE / Ford E450 $104,310 compliance
NW Bus Sales MetroLink |
Blue Star Gas — requires /Ford E450 |
contract with Blue Star Gas ‘ $91,468
Preferred Options Schetky NW | creative Bus - 64GGE Creative Bus — 41GGE NW Bus Sales
Hanover LED Destination
Signs $8,425 $16,570 $16,570 $3,290
Diamond XV Farebox Included $1,840 $1,840 $1,395
2 ICS seats with companion
seat $1,900 $1,260 $1,260 | $880
TOTAL FOR CHOSEN OPTIONS Eliminated due to non-

{In bold)

compliance

Eliminated due to |
non-compliance

% NW Bus clear opening for door is 32" — not required 36” (with assist door

handles)

0y
*

cost. Additional cost not listed.

» NW Bus offered am/fm/Bluetooth per ODOT base bid. CD would be additional



Floorplans
SNW Floorplan

TELETASRE WS B emeaty

NW Bus Floorplan

L bhe Vit £ want — R

WHEL Tel
o
f—:_: J,-Ef T «-»;.vE ) P E J P vaar
s ————— e e —— =]
A A
1 ot aeoue
DERFRRVISA - A3

L ans sl
o



. DEALER APFROVAL
| 7 arPROVED

CUSTOMER SIGNATURE

Tl O

V-

SLIDE-N-CLICK
JSTRAINT QRT 360

SCALE
IN INCHES

Recommendation —

Award to NW Bus Sales as meeting specifications and lowest price.

M



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

In the Matter of Authorizing the
General Manager to Purchase
Four (4) Category E Ford Transit

Vans from Schetky NW Bus Sales RESOLUTION NO. 21-06

WHEREAS, the Tillamook County Transportation District TCTD) received an
ODOQOT Public Transit Division (PTD) Section 5339 “State of Good Repair’ Capital Grant
#34225 and a Section 5311 Capital Grant #34242 to purchase two (2) Category E dial-a-
ride replacement vans and two (2) Category E dial-a-ride expansion vans; and

WHEREAS, the District solicited quotes from three retailers for the purchase of
two intercity buses based on the price agreement the retailers have with the State of
Oregon Department of Administrative Services; and

WHEREAS, based on the quotes provided and District’s preferred specifications,
the District recommends purchasing four (4) Ford Transit Category E dial-a-ride vans from
Schetky NW Bus Sales for $377,428; and

WHEREAS, purchasing a bus through the competitively bid contract between NW
Bus Sales and the State would provide significant cost savings to the District, would not
reduce competition or give favoritism, and would be in the best interest of the District.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County Transportation
District Board of Directors:

that the Board authorizes the General Manager to enter into a contract not to
exceed $377,428 with Schetky NW Bus Sales to purchase four (4) Ford Transit Category
E dial-a-ride vans.

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 18" day of February 2021.

ATTEST:

By: By:
James Huffman, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager

)
V2



UONOSISS @I91YA 1500 15am0 ]

UoISINIQ BSUEl ) ANG LOAO

UO[IEUR N0 9SeUAINg BIOIUSA

120g/c/z :eameubis jo ajeg :aanejuasaaday Aouaby jo aameubis

Woa"sNaYooLLElN@)uedp / G| Le-Z#8 (€08) J1aBeuepy |essusn ueld Bnoq

(mojaq 191ua) ssalppe fiew-3 [ ‘ON auoyd (mojoq api3 pue sweu pajulid J23ua) aanejuasalday Aouaby

IsjuaWIWCY)
Pa1031ag 10N [J pajoajag JON X po309)3ag JION X pajoaag JON [J
:padalag a9IYIA 150D ISAIMO
papaRs O p8joales O payales O pajosjesg x p 19S 3PIYaA 7]
. :suondQ pasiajaid pue suoneoyioadg
o s i Lee'ves pasinbay WM 1502 31IY3A (€301
:(auou J1 043z Jo3Ua - Aue
41) stiondQ pastajaid [eUSHIPPY 40 350D
¢ . isuonesyioadg
B o8 LS paunbay [y UM 350D 3J91Y3A [eI0)
186218 869883 :suoneosyoadg padinbay Jo 1s0)
66+'G8% 1:@01g aseq 3dIYap
pIg oN pig oN TTH0GE USURI | [EORION :pasodoud [2pop@ie N 30143
110puap s$9|es sng pAN  :10pusp Saleg sng aANEal) Opusp MN Aflsyssg :ov:w>l

) :(mojag suwNjo) u) SsWeN JOpuaA Lasu]) SYOANIA WOY4 a310ND ST

(uawnaop to 3si| yaeny) BLYI0 O {uniog spys puIYaG 5,044 IR YoENE) DAY W0 Y 'suondQ patisjeld [ELUOHPPY

(uawinaop 10 3s)) YIeRy) JBYIQ O (uiog sug puy3q S04y e yoexe) By Wod4 X :suonesjoadg pasnbay

[4

¥ IP3SBYDINd g o] S3OIYaA JO "'ON 13 :Aiobajed aj |njasq 291y

ISUonEIS YAV §0 ‘ON 1 :sieag se|nbay Jo ‘oN

NOILOFT3S LS0I LSIMOT - WHOA NOSIMYdNOD OF4d AINIFNFFHOV FoIbd FLVLS

SZZYE PUE ZpZPE "ON Wdwaaiby Juein

SLie-Zre (€0S) ON auoyd leozieiz 9req

19suys1Q uoneuodsues ] A1unod sooweyiy :dwep Aouaby

ejd 6nog :uosiad joejuod

—
2



Tillamook County Transportation District

Category E1 Dial-A-Ride Van Purchase

January 2021

Tillamook County Transportation District received 2 grants from ODQOT for Cat E1, 4
year /100,000 miles vans — Grant 34242 and 34225.

Grant 34242

Project Title: STP Tillamook County Transportation District 34242
Vehicle Replacement

Item #1: Vans
Total Grant Amount Local Match Match Type(s)
$180,000.00 $161,514.00 $18,486.00 Local

Purchase 2 transit vehicles as follows: useful life - 4 years or 100,000 miles;
approximate length - less than 20 feet; estimated number of seats - 9; estimated
number of ADA securement stations - 2; fuel type - gasoline.

Grant 34225

Project Title: 2020-22 Tillamook County TD 34225
Vehicle Expansion.

Item #1: Vans
Total Grant Amount Local Match Match Type(s)
$180,000.00 $153,000.00 $27,000.00 Local

Purchase 2 fransit vehicles as follows: useful life - 4 years or 100,000 miles;
approximate length - less than 20 feet; estimated number of seats - 5; estimated
number of ADA securement Stations - 2; fuel type - gasoline.

Total of 4 vehicles
Budget - Total grant amount = $360,000 divided by 4 = 90,000 each (budget)

Tillamook chose to use the State of Oregon Price Agreement and sent RFQ documents
to 3 vendors on the Price agreement on 12/29/2020 - NW Bus Sales, Schetky NW and
Creative Bus Sales asking for a Cat E1 van with seating for 9, 2 wc stations and
propane fuel. A bid due date of 1/22/2021 was established. An extension was granted

to 1/27/2021.



Two bids were received on time by NW Bus Sales and SNW. CBS did not have a
product to offer and sent an email stating so.

Bid Analysis

% NW Bus Sales provided a floorplan that did not meet the requirement for
“individual seats must be movable/removable and have a flooring system that
allows configuration to agency preference”. All seats are folding/fixed. The only
single seat is fixed behind the lift and the other 3 are folding.

*
0‘0

SNW provided a letter from the mfg of the Shift N Step indicating they are the
exclusive dealer for this product in Oregon/Washington. An email was sent to
NW Bus on 1/28/2021 asking if they are proposing this system or equal and
asked to identify the system being proposed as none was listed in the RFQ
submittal.

2,
o

NW Bus withdrew their bid, as they are not autherized in Oregon to sell the Shift
N Step product. 1/28/2021. Email attached.

Bid pricing is as follows: Both vendors pricing is over the budget amount of
$90K each.

Extended Preferred
| Options — Chosen
Yendar Mfg/ Mode Required Specs Extended x 4 vans only

Norcal I

Transit
Schetky NW 350EL $94,357 $377,428

TCl Mobility
NW Bus Sales Ford Transit Withdrew Bid ]
Creative Bus No Bid |

| |

Preferred Options Schetky NW NW BUS Creative Bus |‘

6 standard tires (no wheels) —

price per tire $1110 $870 No bid
Qty 4 additional studded tires ‘
on wheels for rear of van $2000 $1220 No bid |

Qty 2 additional studded tires
- no wheels for front of van — |
price per tire | $490 $350 No bid

| |
TOTAL FOR CHOSEN OPTIONS [ [
{In bold) |




NW Floorplan NW

~- ' Ford Transit T350-148” EL High Roof DRW ' T
5-"':'»5'1 I l Plan TR148EL82 NTEA

32* Outwnr Blap ]
= Fiiaai s sesasiaiidiessvasidluedulsradssdsissaebideaabieNbasasaailaeit . = -

& SENEEE OO
T B ¢
P i

2P 3PLSY Vol opaeess 27 3P15S

ww | ' WW F/A Seat

Faseall | & : F/A Sear J .D:nmuramemlocauun;
i K3 (XX (AN EEATRLL)] direction
s el

2 e
;-Pg:j = @ Shilt N Step Assembly, ® .
E E Braun Lill, Duat Grab
b *’— A

' Power Ratractabés Siop
W/C positions: min 30" x 52" .

Roo! hatch location |5 subject to change

Drown Exclusively For:

Northwest Bus Sales — 0SB - Tillamook

TCIMOBIUTY, LLC
APPROVED BY DATE

230 BOSSARDSVILLE RO

SCIQTA, PA 18354 H T . ..
DRAWN BY: Melissa Tortorelto PA LICK VDO31302 Tc' r\ﬂob‘ “ty é

B77-TCIVANS

NOTE- Drawing Is for refarenca only and may not accurately reflect a true representation of seating capacity or scale w319

SNW floorplan

%



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

Authorizing the General Manager
to Purchase IVR Technology

for Computer Aided Dispatching
and Scheduling Software from
Ecolane USA, Inc.

N st s s e

RESOLUTION NO. 21-07

WHEREAS, the Tillamook County Transportation District previously executed a
Software License and Service Agreement with Ecolane USA, Inc. to purchase the
Ecolane of Interactive Voice Response (IVR) technology; and

WHEREAS, the District desires to procure IVR technology to improve customer
service, by providing automated customer appointment reminders, opportunities to
confirm or cancel scheduled trips, notify passengers 15-minutes before their pickup
window, and increase operational efficiency by reducing no-shows, maximizing vehicle
capacity and improving on-time performance.; and

WHEREAS, the District, acting as the Local Contract Review Board, approved a
Sole Source procurement on January 21, 2021; and

WHEREAS, public notice of the Sole Source procurement was published on
ORPIN on January 25, 2021; and

WHEREAS, the District did not receive any protest by February 1, 2021.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County Transportation
District Board of Directors:

That the Board authorizes the General Manager to purchase the Ecolane fixed
route/flex deviated route software system along with self-service trip booking
mobile app and SMS text messaging for Tillamook County Transportation District
in an amount not to exceed $86,540.00.

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 18" day of February 2021.

ATTEST:

By: By:
James Huffman, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager

10



AMENDMENT NO. 5
to the
Software License & Services Agreement
Between
Ecolane USA Inc.
And
Tillamook County Transportation District

THIS AMENDMENT NO. 5 ("Amendment") to the Software License & Services
Agreement ("Agreement") dated June 30, 2017, is effective January 27, 2021 ("Effective
Date") between Ecolane USA Inc. ("Licensor") and Tillamook County Transportation District
(collectively, "the Parties™).

NOW THEREFORE, the parties agree to amend the Agreement as follows:

l. Licensor agrees to provide an IVR system for Tillamook County Transportation
District as set forth in Exhibit A, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein. The amount
for the quote is based on Licensor’s Customer Appreciation Sale totaling $26,700 and is due
on or before March 1, 2021.

2. Tillamook County Transportation District agrees to pay Licensor any additional license
and related service fees as set forth in Exhibit A.

3. All other terms and conditions of the Agreement as amended herein, shall remain in
full force and effect. Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have the
meaning given to them in the Agreement.

4. This Amendment may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, but all of which counterparts collectively shall constitute one (1)
instrument representing this Amendment between the patties. In the event that any signature
is delivered by facsimile transmission or by e-mail delivery of a ".pdf format data file, such
signature shall create a valid and binding obligation of the party executing (or on whose behalf
such signature is executed) with the same force and effect as if such facsimile or " .pdf
signature page were an original thereof.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.]

Page 1 of 5



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each Party has caused this Amendment No. 5 to the
Software License & Services Agreement to be executed by its authorized representative to be
effective as of the Effective Date first written above.

Ecolane USA Inc. Tillamook County Transportation
District

Signature: Signature:

Printed Name: Ryan Larsen Printed Name: Doug Pilant

Title: CEO Title:  General Manager

Date: Date:

Page 2 of 5 ,/\}



EXHIBIT A

License Terms

This Exhibit A is made part of and incorporated in that certain Software License & Service

Agreement ("Agreement"), by and between Ecolane USA Inc., a Delaware corporation
("Licensor" or "Ecolane"), located at 940 West Valley Road, Suite 1400, Wayne, PA 19087, and

Tilamook County Transportation District ("Licensee") located at 3600 Third Street, Ste. A,

Tillamook, OR 97141.

A. Pricing/Payment

Page 3 of 5

a» Price Quote
ECOIane Erolane | 540 W alley Rd, Suite 1400 | Wayne, PA 19087
844-ECO-LANE | 810-312-0G33 | SALES@ECOLANE COM
DATE TRANSIT AGENCY NAME ADDRESS CITY, STATE ZiP
112712021 Tillamoek Transporiation District 3600 3rd Street Suile A Tilamook. WA 97141
FROJECT ATTENTION PHONE E-MAIL
(Customer Appreciation Sale Doug Pitant 707-972-2315 doilant@tilamookbus com
BD DIRECTOR E-MAIL PHONE PRICING TERMS
Priscilla Vargas priscilla.vargas@ecotane.com 206-799-9574 Contingant on sign off before end
— day on ¥/1/2021
DATE PRICE EXPIRES
1172021
Irgtial Licenses
QUANTITY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE AMOUNT
1 Ecolane VR (3rd party charges will apply) $40,000.00 $40,000.00
Inftial licenses subtotal $40,000.00
Discount 50%
Additional IVR Discournt $ {10,000.00)
Initial licenses cost with discount applied subtotal $10,000.00
Additioral items
QUANTITY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE AMOUNT
UDI Setup costs and licenses - Includes call flows for Night before, Vehicle Arrival
1 notifications (web-based call flow reports included), in English and Spanish (50% off $8,750.00 $8,750.00
already)
UDi Monthly IVR Costs for year 1 (Customer will be responsibie for overages set at
12 $0.044/min, allotted 6,000 minutes/month, which is based upon # of trips performed $580.00 $6,960.00
weekly)}
Additional ftems subtotai $15,710.00




Services

]

QUANTITY DESCRIPTION UMNIT PRICE AMOUNT
Remote set up of Ecolane DRT and MDT software (8 hr. work days), includes remote
1 training and project management $a9x00) £990.00.
e S— —— W Y ;
Services subtotal $990.00
Armeal Licarsing Year 1
QUANTITY DESCRIPTION UMIT PRICE AMOUNT
1 f\ll Incluswe’Annual Licensing plan includes support for all licenses listed above and ali Included Included
items below:
Hosting Costs Included
Server Maintenance Included
24/7/365 Support via web, email and phone Included
Map Updates Included
Upgrades™ and Updates Included
Free monthly webinar training and access to Ahal dea portal to help drive o | _l dod
. } N functionality for new develapment for Ecolane and its customers pelice
Access to Leaming Management System (LMS), Ecolane University for all staff for Included
self-paced web-pased training DRLD
Annual licensing year 1 subtotal Included
Customer Appreciation sala!
Ecolana & off Half Pcad Add-On Modules unil March Tt B IORAL 326,700.00
Let us give you some Tove by offering these items for half the Prics! TOTAL SYSTEM
;;oﬁm.e .b?w fal: morel PURCHASE COSTS FOR $26,700.00
tock up now i YEAR 1
Anmual Licensing Tor years 2-3 (per year} | Please ask your Biz Dev Director about pre-paid mantenance discounts!
QUANTITY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE AMOUNT
UDI Monthly IVR Costs {Customer will be responsible for overages set at $0.044/min,
g2 aliotted 6,000 minutesimonth, which is based upon # f trips performed weekly) $580:00 38.220.00
. B All Inclusive Annual Licensing plan inaud_% support for all licenses listed above in initial _
d licenses and all items below: $8.000.00 $4,000.00
Hosting Costs Included
Server Maintenance Included
24/7/365 Support via web, email and phone Inciuded
Map Updates Included
Upgrades** and Updates included
Free monthly webinar traini;g and access to Ahal Idea portal to help drive N
functionality for new development for Ecolane and its customers e
Access to Leaming Management System (LMS), Ecolane University for all staff for Included
self-paced web-based training ZHCR
Annual Licensing years 2-5 (per year} subtoal $14,960.00

Annual licensing will be held at this rate for as long as your agercy is an Ecolane customer, (Based on onginally purchased solution. Does not include 3rd party charges or data

plans)
7
112712021

Ryan Larsen, CEO Date

THIS PROPOSAL NCLUDES THE CONDITIONS NOTED:

b VTramning i 8 hrs, per day on-site excluding weekends and holidays

Al prices are in US dollars. All applicable salesiuse iaxes are additonal and payment of such is the sole respansibility of the purchaser
Cusiomer may purchase Android table’s and airtime for Tablets through cellular prowder. Prices for tablets range from 30 to 5499 depending on carrier Please coardinate your cefitar peovderitablets with
Ecolana prios to ordering hardware

Data plan does notinclude web browsing, atc. 268 data plar 15 more than suficient for e Ecalane Touchscreen MDT Software and Mawgation  Agency 1s respensibie for data plan and any averages unless
othenwse roted

“*Upgrade and webmar training s incheded for upgrades, addiional on site or new emplayee fraining is charged at Refresher Travming rale plus travel as applicable
~* All Optional tem licerse costs include annual hosting, suppont & licensing fees due 1 year from contract signing set at 20%

/lb
Page 4 of 5



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

Authorizing the General Manager

to Execute a Customer Service
Agreement with Carson Oil Company
for the Purchase of Fuel and Lubricants

RESOLUTION NO. 21-08

WHEREAS, Tillamook County Transportation District (TCTD) desires purchasing
fuel and lubricants through a company with fueling facilities located throughout Tillamook,
Lincoln, Polk and Marion counties; and

WHEREAS, the District a desire to purchase fuel and lubricants from a company
that will provide a functional .csv file that can be uploaded into the District's “Fleetio” fleet
maintenance software; and

WHEREAS, the District has a desire to purchase fuel and lubricants from a
company that provides the State of Oregon’s State Pricing Agreement prices; and

WHEREAS, the TCTD Board of Directors, acting as the Local Contract Review
Board, approved a Sole Source procurement on 11/19/2020; and

WHEREAS, a public notice of the Sole Source Written Determinations
procurement was published on ORPIN on 11/23/2020; and

WHEREAS, the District did not receive any protests to the Sole Source Written
Determinations by November 30, 2020; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County Transportation
District Board of Directors:

The Board authorizes the General Manager to execute a Customer Service
Agreement with Carson Oil Company to purchase fuel and lubricants from the CFN
and Pacific Pride networks.

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 18" day of February 2021.

ATTEST:

By: By:
James Huffman, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager

4
10



(ARSSN

OUR CUSTOMERS | OUR PEOPLE | OUR COMMITMENT

Acct #:

Service Agreement

Sales Rep: Shaynne Goodwin

Account Location Information

Name: Tillamook County Transportation District
Service Address: 3600 3rd Street Suite A

City, ST, zip: Tillamook Oregon 97141
County: Tillamook

Tel/Email: 5038423118 bolson@tillamookbus.com
Cantact: Brent Olson

Account Billing Information

Name: Tillamook County Transportation District
Billing Address: 3600 3rd Street Suite A

City, ST, Zip: Tillamook Oregon 97141

County: Tillamook

Tel/Email: 5038423118 bolson@tillamookbus.com
Contact: Brent Olson

Product Description Est. Annual Package Size Price Per Unit Notes
Volume
Commercial fuel Cards 80000 gallons Market Rate

CFN & PacPride Network

Product and Services Specifications

Special Instructions

| Carson Agreement Number:

***Edit to Term** Section 8 TERM : This Agreement is for 60 months and terminates after 60 months,
unless 90 days prior Carson and Tillamook County Transportation agree to extend for 60 additional

months.

Payment Terms Lubricants | Payment Terms Fuels

Purchase Order #

Taxable/Tax Exempt Drum Deposit

All lubricant products are subject to a 1% Fue! Recovery charge and a 2.5% Environmental Recovery charge. The undersigned individual signing
this agreement on behalf of customer acknowledges that they have the authority to sign on behalf of the customer. Terms and conditions on

reverse side.

Customer

Signature

Print Name Date

Company

Signature

Print Name Date

i\




PRODUCTS AND SERVICES RENDERED; Customer agrees for the Term of this Agreement to purchase from Company all Products
and Services necessary and required by Customer as specified on the cover page to this Agreement.

CARSON COMITTMENT; COMPANY FAILURE TO PERFORM,; If Carson fails to perform or provide the products and services
described and does not remedy the failure within five business days of its receipt of a written demand from Customer, Customer may
then terminate this Agreement without penalty with the payment of all monies due through the termination date.

CHARGES, PAYMENTS, ADJUSTMENTS; Customer shall pay for the services and/or equipment (including repair and maintenance)
furnished by Company in accordance with the charges on the cover page adjusted hereunder, within the specified timeframe under
payment terms on the front page of this agreement. Customer shall pay a service charge on all past due amounts accruing from the
due date of the invoice at a rate of eighteen percent (18%) per annum or the maximum rate allowed by law. Company may increase the
charges to account for: any increase in cost of goods passed on by our suppliers, fuel or transportation costs; increased costs due to
uncontrollable circumstances, including, without limitation, changes in local, state or federal laws or regulations, imposition of taxes,
fees or surcharges and acts of God such as floods, fires, etc. Company may also increase the charges to reflect increases in the
Consumer Pricing Index. Increases in charges for reasons other than as provided above require the consent of Customer

EQUIPMENT, ACCESS; All equipment furnished by Company shall remain the property of Company; however, Customer shall have
care, custody and control of the equipment and shall bear responsibility and liability for all loss or damage to the equipment and for its
contents while at Customer’s location. Customer shall not move or alter the equipment and shall use the equipment only for its
intended purpose. At the termination of this Agreement, Customer shall return the equipment to Company in the condition in which it
was provided, normal wear and tear excepted. Customer grants to Company access to Customer's property to install maintain and/or
remove equipment. Company shall not be responsible for any damage to Customer’s property, including pavement, subsurface or
curbing, resulting from Company’s provision of services hereunder. Customer warrants that Customer’s right of way is sufficient to bear
the weight of Company’s equipment and vehicles.

DEFAULT AND DAMAGES; In the event Customer terminates this Agreement prior to the expiration of any Term for any reason other
than a default by Company, or in the event Company terminates this Agreement for Customer’s default, Customer shall be liable to
Company for compensatory damages and its lost profits. [n addition, Customer shall as liquidated damages and not as a penalty, pay
the greater of [a] an amount equal to four (4) months’ service and or product charges; or (b) customer's most recent account balance
multiply by four whichever is greater. Customer acknowledges that this liquidated damages clause is reasonable and applicable to
recover damages as a consequence of the default, breach or early termination of this Agreement and in no way relieves Customer from
its obligations and liabilities for other costs or damages as set forth elsewhere in this Agreement. Company shall not be liable under
any circumstances for any special, incidental or consequential damages arising out of or in connection with performance of this
Agreement.

INDEMNITY; Customer agrees to indemnify, defend and save the Company, its directors, officers and employees harmless from and
against any and all claims, suits, losses, liabilities, assessments, damages, fines, costs and expenses, including attorney's fees arising
out of or in connection with any breach of this Agreement or arising out of negligence or willful misconduct of Customer or Customer’s
employees, agents, subcontractors or representatives. Company provides no guarantee or warranty, express, implied,
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. This Section shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL; Customer grants to Company a right of first refusal to match any offer relating to services similar to
those provided hereunder which Customer receives (or intends to make) upon termination of this Agreement for any reason and
Customer shall give Company prompt written notice of any such offer and a reasonable opportunity to respond to it, not to exceed 15
days. Customer agrees to send a certified letter addressed to the Vice President of Sales, or Director of Sales as notification.

TERM; The initial term (“Term”) of this Agreement is sixty (60) months from the Effective Date of this Agreement (“Initial Term”). This
Agreement shall automatically renew thereafter for an additional term of sixty (60) months (“Renewal Term") unless either party gives
to the other party written notice of termination at least ninety (90) days, prior to the expiration of the initial or Renewal term.

MISCELLANEOUS; (a) Except for the obligation to make payments hereunder, neither party shall be in default for its failure to perform
or delay in performance caused by events beyond its reasonable control, including, but not limited to, strikes, riots, imposition of laws or
governmental orders, fires, acts of God, and inability to obtain equipment, and the affected party shall be excused from performance
during the occurrence of such events; (b) This Agreement shall be binding on and shali inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and
their respective successors and assigns; (c) This Agreement represents the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes any
and all other agreements, whether written or oral, that may exist between the parties; (d) Customer shall not transfer or assign in any
form the obligations and services describe herein without written consent of the Company (e) This Agreement shall be construed in
accordance with the law of the state of Oregon and venue for any dispute shall be Multnomah County, Oregon ; and (f) if any provision
of this Agreement is declared invalid or unenforceable, then such provision shall be severed from and shall not affect the remainder of
this Agreement; however, the parties shall amend this Agreement to give effect, to the maximum extent allowed, to the intent and
meaning of the severed provision. (g) In the event the Company successfully enforces its rights against Customer hereunder, the
Customer shall be required to pay the Company's attorney’s fees and court costs including such costs, collection agency commissions
and expenses. (h) The following attachments are incorporated as part of this service agreement.

7'l



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

In the Matter of Appropriating

Monies between NW Rides FY2020-21
Budget Line Items to Facilitate
CPCCO Gainshare Payments

RESOLUTION NO. 21-09

WHEREAS, Tillamook County Transportation District (TCTD) has the power to act
as a broker for non-emergency medical transportation (NEMT) services under ORS
Chapter 267; and

WHEREAS, TCTD and Columbia Pacific Coordinated Care Organization
(CPCCO) recognize that such a brokerage arrangement for NEMT services creates
efficiencies for and is in the best interest of both parties; and

WHEREAS, on July 19, 2018, TCTD and CPCCO executed the “Columbia Pacific
CCO Non-Emergent Medical Transportation Services Delegation Agreement” (the “2018
Agreement”) authorizing TCTD to act as a broker for NEMT services for CPCCO through
June 30, 2019; and

WHEREAS, on November 19, 2020, TCTD and CPCCO amended and restated
the “Columbia Pacific CCO Non-Emergent Medical Transportation Services Delegation
Agreement”) to allow TCTD to continue to act as a broker for NEMT services for CPCCO
through December 31, 2021; and

WHEREAS, TCTD and CPCCO have agreed in Exhibit A, Part 3, Section 2.b of
the Delegate Agreement that in the event Delegate’s revenues exceed its expenses,
Delegate will retain fifty percent (50%) of the amount of the PMPM advance received from
CCO in the quarter that revenue exceeds expenses and CCO will retain the other fifty
percent (50%); and

WHEREAS, an excess of revenues has occurred and there is a requirement to
disperse a revenue gainshare expense within the TCTD FY2020-2021 NW Rides Budget
by reducing the “Purchase Transportation” and increasing the “Licenses and Fees” line
items; and

WHEREAS, ORS 294.463 allows the governing body to transfer appropriations
within a fund when authorized by resolution; and

WHEREAS, OAR 150-294-0540 allows the governing body to transfer
appropriation authority from one line item to another when a resolution is adopted that
authorizes the transfer;

45039-27477 4826-8496-4828.1



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County Transportation

District Board of Directors that:

The TCTD NW Rides Budget is amended as reflected in the following table:

Line ltem # Adopted Increase Adjusted
Budget Decrease Budget

Fees & Licenses #5150 $15,000 | +$450,000 | $465,000

Purchase Transportation #5265 | $4,000,000 | - $450,000 | $3,550,000

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 18" day of February, 2021.

ATTEST:

By:

By:

James Huffman, Board Chair

Doug Pilant, General Manager

A

45039-27477 4826-8496-4828.1



